
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

         
 

 

                           
 
 

 
 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Tuesday, January 23, 2018 
 

7:00 PM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

James Steenbergen, President • Kathryn Kaminski, Vice President • Kay Danziger, Secretary 

Mandi Bronsell • Dr. Tyson Harrell • Joe Hubenak • Melisa Roberts 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 



LAMAR CISD BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

BRAZOS CROSSING ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

3911 AVENUE I, ROSENBERG, TEXAS 

JANUARY 23, 2018 

7:00 PM 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to order and establishment of a quorum  

2. Opening of meeting  

3. Recognitions/awards  

4. Introductions  

5. Audience to patrons  

6. Approval of minutes  

A. December 12, 2017 - Special Meeting (Workshop) 6 

B. December 19, 2017 - Special Meeting (Workshop) 8 

C. December 21, 2017 - Regular Board Meeting 11 

7. Board members reports  

A. Meetings and events  

8. Superintendent reports  

A. Meetings and events  

B. Information for immediate attention  

9. Public Hearing - LCISD Accountability Performance Report for 2016-2017  

10. ACTION ITEMS  

A. Goal: Planning  

1. Consider approval of Quarterly Investment Report 19 

2. Consider approval of the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 2016 - 2017 year 

26 

3. Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 27 

4. Consider approval of purchase of band and orchestra instruments, 

equipment, related items and services 

31 

5. Consider approval of catering and banquet services 33 

6. Consider approval of Board Calendar for 2018 35 

7. Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming:  

a. Black History Month 37 

b. Career and Technical Education Month 39 

c. School Counselor Week 41 

8. Consider approval of amendment to the Texas General Land Office 

agreement for the emergency interruptible load service program 

43 

9. Consider approval of CenterPoint Energy terms and conditions for Foster 56 



High School Natatorium 

10. Consider approval of CenterPoint Energy terms and conditions and 

facilities extension agreement for Fulshear High School Natatorium 

84 

11. Consider approval of materials testing for Culver Elementary School 101 

12. Consider approval of base cost increase for refurbished moving van semi-

trailers 

114 

11. INFORMATION ITEMS  

A. Goal: Planning  

1. Board Policies for First Reading 116 

2. TASB 2016-2018 Advocacy Agenda 236 

3. Tax Collection Report 237 

4. Payments for Construction Projects 243 

5. Bond Update 246 

6. Projects funded by 2011 available bond funds 256 

7. Transportation Update 257 

8. Proposed Budget Calendar 260 

9. Holdsworth Center Update 262 

12. CLOSED SESSION  

A. Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 

551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the 

following purposes: (Time___________________) 

 

1. Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, 

employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a 

public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public 

officer or employee. 

263 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of 

professional personnel 

 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 264 

c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 265 

d. Superintendent's Evaluation and Contract  

2. Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, 

lease or value of real property 

 

a. Land  

3. Section 551.071 - To meet with the District's attorney to discuss matters in 

which the duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 

with the Open Meetings Act, including the grievance/complaint hearing. 

 

a. Any item listed on the agenda  

b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school 

finance litigation 

 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 



 Action on Closed Session Items 

 Future Agenda Items 

 Upcoming Meetings and Events 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (Time                             ) 

 

If during the course of the meeting covered by this notice, the Board should determine that a closed 

session of the Board should be held or is required in relation to an item noticed in this meeting, then such 

closed session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code (the Open 

Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date, hour or place given in this notice or as soon after the 

commencement of the meeting covered by this notice as the Board may conveniently meet in such closed 

session concerning any and all subjects and for any and all purposes permitted by Section 551.071-

551.084, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act, including, but not limited to:  

 

Section 551.084 - For the purpose of excluding witness or witnesses from a hearing during 

examination of another witness. 

 

Section 551.071 - For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board's attorney on any or all 

subjects or matters authorized by law. 

 

Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 

property. 

 

Section 551.073 - For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a prospective gift or 

donation. 

 

Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, 

reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or 

charges against a public officer or employee. 

 

Section 551.082 - For the purpose of considering discipline of a public school child or children or to 

hear a complaint by an employee against another employee if the complaint or charge directly results 

in a need for a hearing. 

 

Section 551.076 - To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security 

personnel or devices. 

 

Section 551.083 - For the purpose of considering the standards, guidelines, terms or conditions the 

Board will follow, or instruct its representatives to follow, in consultation with representatives of 

employee groups in connection with consultation agreements provided for by Section 13.901 of the 

Texas Education Code. 

Section 551.0821 – For the purpose of deliberating a matter regarding a public school student if 

personally identifiable information about the student will necessarily be revealed by the deliberation. 

 

Should any final action, final decision or final vote be required in the opinion of the Board with 

regard to any matter considered in such closed session, then such final action, final decision or final 

vote shall be at either: 

a. the open meeting covered by this notice upon the reconvening of this public meeting, or 

b. at a subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board may determine. 

 

CERTIFICATE AS TO POSTING OR GIVING OF NOTICE 

 

On this 19th day of January 2018 at 3:00 p.m., this notice was posted on a bulletin board located at a 

place convenient to the public in the central administrative offices of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 





 
 
 

Special Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Special Meeting Held 
 
On this the 12th day of December 2017, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Special Session (Workshop) in 
Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Mr. James 
Steenbergen, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Members Present: 
 
James Steenbergen  President 
Kathryn Kaminski  Vice President 
Kay Danziger   Secretary 
Mandi Bronsell  Member 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
Joe Hubenak   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 
 
2. ACTION ITEMS 
 
2. A. GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
2. A-1  Operational Audit Report 
 

Mr. Odysseus Lanier, partner from McConnell & Jones LLP, presented the 
operational audit report. 

 
Ms. Kaminski arrive 7:10 p.m. 
 

6



Minutes of Special Board Meeting December 19, 2017 – page 31 
 
The Board recessed at 7:10 p.m. 
 
The Board reconvened at 7:23 p.m.  
 
2. A-2  Governance Team (Board and Superintendent) Team Building and Self-Assessment 
 

Ms. Kate Rogers and Dr. Lindsay Whorton, from the Holdsworth Center, presented 
the workshop on team building and self-assessment. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION  PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property 

3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the 
duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional  
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/complaint hearing. 
 
 

The Board did not convene in Closed Session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:51 p.m. 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
James Steenbergen     Kay Danziger 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

7



 
 
 

Special Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Special Meeting Held 
 
On this the 19th day of December 2017, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Special Session (Workshop) in 
Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Mr. James 
Steenbergen, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Members Present: 
 
James Steenbergen  President 
Kathryn Kaminski  Vice President 
Kay Danziger   Secretary 
Mandi Bronsell  Member 
Joe Hubenak   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Linda Lane   Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Leslie Haack   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Chief Human Resources Officer 
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Valerie Vogt   Chief Academic Officer 
 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 
 

8



Minutes of Special Board Meeting December 19, 2017 – page 33 
 
2. Discussion of December 21st Regular Board Meeting Agenda Items 
 

The Board reviewed the December 21st Regular Board Meeting agenda items. 
 

11. ACTION ITEMS 
 
11. A GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
11. A-5  Consider approval of base cost increase for refurbished moving van semi-trailers 
 

Ms. Roberts asked if we have any idea of how many trailers will be needed.  Dr. 
Randle said George Ranch has its own and Fulshear is in the bond.  We are looking 
at the other three so they have the same size and type trailer.  Ms. Danziger asked 
about a ballpark figure.  Mr. Estrada said no more than $85,000.  Dr. Randle said 
these are 53’ trailers and they have been renting equipment.  The District feels like 
offsetting the rental costs will help pay for the additional cost of the trailer.  Ms. 
Roberts asked if this will take a special type of driver.  Mr. Jones said they already 
have drivers with Class A licenses.  The District has one truck purchased currently 
and will use budget money for the other trucks.  The purchase of the trailers will be 
done as the budget funds are available.   
 

11. A-10 Consider approval of MUD No. 184 agreements and fees for Carter Elementary  
School 
 
Ms. Roberts asked what happens if we go over the 800 capacity.  Mr. McKeever said 
this protects us for a long time, we have never gone over.  Ms. Kaminski asked what 
is the capacity for Carter.  Mr. McKeever said 750.   
 

3. AUDIENCE TO PATRONS 
 

None 
 

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION  PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional 
personnel 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 
d. Reassignment of professional personnel (Information) 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property 

a. Land  
3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the 

duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional  
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 

9



Minutes of Special Board Meeting December 19, 2017 – page 34 
 
 
The Board did not convene in Closed Session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:46 p.m. 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
James Steenbergen     Kay Danziger 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

10



 
 
 

Regular Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Regular Meeting Held 
 
On this the 21st day of December 2017, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Regular Session in Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Mr. James 
Steenbergen, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Members Present: 
 
James Steenbergen  President 
Kathryn Kaminski  Vice President 
Kay Danziger   Secretary 
Mandi Bronsell  Member 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
Joe Hubenak   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Linda Lane   Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Leslie Haack   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Chief Human Resources Officer 
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Valerie Vogt   Chief Academic Officer 
Rick Morris   Attorney 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 
2. OPENING OF MEETING 
 

A moment of silence was observed and asked they remember former board member, Frank 
Torres.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 

 

11



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 21, 2017 – page 36 
 
3. STUDENT REPORTS:  1621 – Service Project 
 

The following students from 1621 presented:  Jesus Garza, Asia Vasquez, Reese Gray, and 
Mysunique Turner 

 
4. RECOGNITIONS/AWARDS 
 

None 
 
5. INTRODUCTIONS 
 

Dr. Kathleen Bowen introduced new staff to the Board: 
 Carsen Collins, assistant principal at Lamar Jr. High School  
 

6. AUDIENCE TO PATRONS 
 

Mr. Larry Moten addressed the Board about his concerns for property taxes, the 2017 bond, 
Holdsworth Center being free, and the release of the audit book.   
 

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. NOVEMBER 14, 2017 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING (WORKSHOP) 
 

It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Ms. Kaminski that the Board of 
Trustees approve the minutes of November 14, 2017 Special Board Meeting 
(Workshop).  The motion carried unanimously. 
  

B. NOVEMBER 16, 2017 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

It was moved by Ms. Roberts and seconded by Mr. Hubenak that the Board of 
Trustees approve the minutes of November 16, 2017 Regular Board Meeting.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
 

a. Meetings and Events 
 

Ms. Bronsell reported the Policy Committee met and reported on the changes to Update 
108. 
 
Ms. Roberts reported the Attendance Boundary Committee met and has a committee 
being proposed for Carter Elementary School. 
 
Ms. Danziger reported the Facilities Committee met and reported the status of projects in 
the District.  She attended the Lindsey Elementary School dedication ceremony.   
 
Mr. Hubenak reported the Technology Committee met and reported the status of projects 
in the District. 
 
Mr. Steenbergen attended the inaugural orchestra concerts at Navarro and Wertheimer 
Middle Schools.   
 
 
 

12



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 21, 2017 – page 37 
 
9. SUPERINTENDENT REPORTS 

 
a. Meetings and Events 

 
b. Information for Immediate Attention 
 

10. Public Hearing on Financial Integrity Rating System of Texas (FIRST) for fiscal year  
 2015 - 2016  
 

The hearing was opened at 7:19 p.m.  Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer gave a brief 
overview on the Financial Integrity Rating System of Texas for fiscal year 2015-2016. There 
being no more discussion, the hearing was closed to the public at 7:32 p.m. 

 
ACTION ITEMS FOR CONSENT OF APPROVAL:  11. A-1 – 11. A-3; 11. A-6 – 11. A-15; 11. B-1 – 
11. B-2; and 11. C-1. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Mr. Steenbergen that the Board of Trustees 
approve these action items as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
11. A GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
11. A-1 Ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 
 

Ratified the Financial and Investment reports as presented. 
 

11. A-2 Approval of budget amendment requests 
 

Approved budget amendment requests as attached.  (See inserted page 37-A.) 
 
11. A-3 Approval of Board Policies - Second Reading 

a. Localized Policy Manual Update 108 
b. EFA (EXHIBIT A)  Request for reconsideration of instructional materials  
c. EFA (EXHIBIT B)  Reconsideration of instructional materials committee 

report  
d. FFA (LOCAL)  Student Welfare:  Wellness and Health Services 

 
Approved the second reading of the following policies: 
 
Localized Policy Manual Update 108 
EFA (EXHIBIT A) Request for reconsideration of instructional materials 
EFA (EXHIBIT B) Reconsideration of instructional materials committee 
FFA (LOCAL) Student Welfare:  Wellness and Health Services 
 
(See inserted pages 37-B—37-V.)  

 
11. A-6 Approval of final payment for the Agricultural Facility #2 
 

Approved the final payment of $30,001.95 to BLS Construction, Inc. and change 
order #1 for a no cost time extension, for the construction of Agricultural Facility #2.  
(See inserted page 37-W.)    
 
 
 
 

13



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 21, 2017 – page 38 
 
11. A-7 Approval of CenterPoint Energy blanket easement for Carter Elementary School 
 

Approved the CenterPoint Energy blanket easement for the installation of overhead 
and underground electric service at Carter Elementary School and authorized the 
Board President to execute easement documents.  (See inserted pages 38-A—38-K.)  

 
11. A-8 Approval of CenterPoint Energy gas development fees for Cater Elementary 

School 
 

Approved the CenterPoint Energy gas development fees for Carter Elementary 
School and approved the payment in the amount of $64,701.82.   
 

11. A-9 Approval of CenterPoint Energy blanket easement for the Natatorium at 
Fulshear High School  

 
Approved the CenterPoint Energy blanket easement and service order for the 
installation of overhead and underground electric service at the Natatorium at 
Fulshear High School and authorized the Board President to execute easement 
documents and service order.   (See inserted pages 38-L—38-W.) 

 
11. A-10 Approval of MUD No. 184 agreements and fees for Carter Elementary School 
 

Approved the capacity agreement, application, non-taxable user fee, meters and 
inspection fees of the Fort Bend County MUD #184 for Carter Elementary School and 
approved the payment in the amount of $253,936.94, and authorized the Board 
President to execute the agreement.    (See inserted pages 38-X—38-NN.) 
 

11. A-11 Approval of commissioning agent for Roberts Middle School 
 

Approved Estes, McClure & Associates as commissioning agent for Roberts Middle 
School in the amount of $26,500 and authorized the Board President to execute the 
agreement.  (See inserted pages 38-OO—38-PP.) 
 
 

11. A-12 Approval of commissioning agent for Culver Elementary School 
 

Approved Estes, McClure & Associates as commissioning agent for Culver 
Elementary School in the amount of $27,200 and authorized the Board President to 
execute the agreement.  (See inserted pages 38-QQ—38-RR.) 
 

11. A-13 Approval of additional materials testing for Lamar Consolidated High School 
band hall addition 

 
Approved Terracon, Inc. for additional materials testing for Lamar Consolidated High 
School band hall addition in the amount of $6,500 and authorized the Board 
President to execute the agreement.  (See inserted pages 38-SS—38-UU.) 
 

11. A-14 Approval of amendment #4 to RFQuote #18-2016LN HVAC full coverage 
maintenance and service agreement 

 
Approved the amendment #4 to the RFQ #18-2016LN full coverage maintenance and 
service agreement with Texas AirSystems in the amount of $12,400 per year and 
authorized the Board President to execute the agreement.   (See inserted page 38-
VV.) 

14



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 21, 2017 – page 39 
 
11. A-15 Approval of Attendance Boundary Committee  
 

Approved the membership of the Attendance Boundary Committee (ABC) for 2017-
2018 as presented with the proposed timeline using the LCISD Zoning Process, and 
charged the ABC with setting the boundaries for Carter Elementary for the 2018-2019 
school year.   
 

11. B GOAL:  TECHNOLOGY 
 

11. B-1 Approval of security camera purchases 
 

Approved the purchase of security cameras, installation of hardware, network cabling, 
and installation services not to exceed the amount of $25,000.   
 

11. B-2 Approval of interactive panel and projector purchases 
 

Approved the purchase of interactive panels, projectors, installation hardware, and 
installation services not to exceed the amount of $25,000.   
 

11. C GOAL:  PERSONNEL 
 

11. C-1 Approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2017-2018 school year 
 

Approved the 2017-2018 appraiser(s) who have recently become certified or are new 
to Lamar Consolidated Independent School District (LCISD).    
 

11. A GOAL:  PLANNING 
 

11. A-4 Consider approval of nomination of candidate for position on the Texas 
Association of School Boards (TASB) Board of Directors 
 
It was moved by Dr. Harrell and seconded by Ms. Bronsell that the Board of Trustees 
approved the nomination of Ms. Kay Danziger for Position C on the Texas 
Association of School Boards (TASB) Board of Directors. The motion carried 
unanimously.  
 

11. A-5 Consider approval of base cost increase for refurbished moving van semi-
trailers 

 
It was moved by Ms. Kaminski and seconded by Ms. Danziger that the Board of 
Trustees approve increasing the base cost amount approved in August 2017 for 
refurbished moving van trailers from $35,000 to any amount required, along with the 
approval for budget amendments as necessary to purchase same. 
 
Ms. Roberts has concerns about this being changed from $35,000 to any amount 
required, this appears to be frivolous.  She would ask the board to consider having 
administration come back with more definite numbers and a more equitable plan to 
distribute to the campus.   
 
Motion withdrawn. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Roberts and seconded by Ms. Kaminski that the Board of 
Trustees postpone this agenda item to a future meeting.  The motion carried 
unanimously.  

15



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 21, 2017 – page 40 
 
11. A-16 Consider approval of the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 

Operational Audit Report l 
 
It was moved by Ms. Roberts and seconded by Ms. Kaminski that the Board of 
Trustees accept the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Operational 
Audit Report.   
 
Ms. Roberts informed the public that the audit book was not necessarily available to 
the privileged few, it was a committee of three board members and the rest had not 
seen it until it was presented.  It was not an operating document that could be given 
to the public until the report was accepted by the Board.  She said this audit opened 
their eyes to things, a lot they already knew, but this will help them strategically plan 
for the future.   
 
Ms. Danziger said like anything else, this will be a working document.  This is 
something that will help the District for years to come and help the District move down 
the road for the next 10 years.  It is not something that can be implemented overnight.   
 
The motion carried unanimously.  
 

12. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
12. A GOAL:  COMMUNICATIONS 
 
12. A-1 School Board Recognition Month 
 

(See inserted page 40-A.) 
 
12. B GOAL:  PERSONNEL 
 
12. B-1 Report on Board Member Training 
 

As of this date, the Lamar CISD Board members have the following current 
(since last year’s report) and accumulated certified training credit: 
 

  Current Accumulated Total 
 
  Mandi Bronsell 20.50      20.50 
                        Kay Danziger  31.50 131.75   163.25 
                        Tyson Harrell  11.50 36.00     47.50 
                        Joe Hubenak  19.50      19.50 
                        Kathryn Kaminski 23.00 143.50   166.50 
                        Melisa Roberts 15.00 41.25     56.25 

       James Steenbergen 24.25 55.75     80.00 
 
12. C GOAL:  INSTRUCTIONAL 
 
12. C-1 2017-2018 Summer School 
 
12. C-2 School Health Advisory Council Annual Report 
 
 
 

16



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 21, 2017 – page 41 
 
12. D GOAL:  PLANNING 

 
12. D-1 Lamar Education Awards Foundation (L.E.A.F.) Update 
 
12. D-2 Tax Collection Report 
 
12. D-3 Payments for Construction Projects 
 
12. D-4 Bond Update 

 
12. D-5 Projects funded by 2011 available bond funds 
 
12. D-5 Transportation Update 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION  PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional 
personnel 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 
d. Reassignment of professional personnel (Information) 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property 

a. Land  
3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the 

duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional  
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 
 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 7:48 p.m. for the purposes listed above. 
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION – ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
The Board reconvened in Open Session at 8:09 p.m. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Readdressing the CMA 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS AND EVENTS 
 
None 
 
 
 

17



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 21, 2017 – page 42 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
James Steenbergen     Kay Danziger 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

18



   
 

 
 

CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT 
 

SEPTEMBER 2017 THROUGH NOVEMBER 2017 
 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees ratify the quarterly investment report as submitted for the 
quarter ending November 30, 2017. 
 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
This report is required by state law and local policy CDA and includes all the pertinent 
information regarding the District’s current investments.  Investment officers for the 
District will be present at the meeting to answer any questions about the report and the 
District’s cash and investment position.  
 
 
Submitted by:   Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
                         Yvonne Dawson, Director of Budget and Treasury                        
                         Michele Reynolds, Director of Finance  
                        
  
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 

10.A.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT 

SCHOOL DISTRICT COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT  
FOR THE 2016 - 2017 YEAR 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 2016 - 2017 fiscal 
year as presented. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
A draft of the Lamar CISD Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
2016-2017 fiscal year is enclosed for your review.  This report is comprised of three 
sections. The introductory section includes district information and a letter of 
transmittal.  The financial section includes the auditors’ report, various financial 
reports and notes, and required supplementary information.  The last section includes 
unaudited statistical trend data to better help the user of the financial statements to 
understand the economic conditions under which the District operates. 
 
A representative of Whitley Penn, LLP will be present to comment on the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and respond to any questions. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
              Michele Reynolds, CPA, Director of Finance  
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

  10.A.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

26



 
 
 

CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF FINANCIAL AND INVESTMENT REPORTS 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Trustees ratify the Financial and Investment Reports as presented. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Financial reporting is intended to provide information useful for many purposes.  The 
reporting function helps fulfill government’s duty to be publicly accountable, as well as to 
help satisfy the needs of users who rely on the reports as an important source of 
information for decision making.  

Financial reports and statements are the end products of the accounting process.  You 
will find attached the following reports: 

 Ratification of December 2017 Disbursements, all funds 

o List of disbursements for the month by type of expenditure 

 Financial Reports 

o Year-to-Date Cash Receipts and Expenditures, General Fund only 

o Investment Report 

 

Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
   Michele Reynolds, CPA, Director of Finance 

 

Recommended for ratification: 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

  10.A.#3. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

27



SCHEDULE OF NOVEMBER 2017 DISBURSEMENTS 
 

 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
All disbursements made by the Accounting Department are submitted to the Board of Trustees for ratification on a 
monthly basis.  Disbursements made during the month of November total $25,795,950 and are shown below by 
category: 
 

3-Digit Object Description Disbursements

611/612 Salaries and Wages, All Personnel 16,843,733         
614 Employee Benefits 832,700
621 Professional Services 3,870
623 Education Services Center 11,000
624 Contracted Maintenance and Repair Services 328,592
625 Utilities 794,551
626 Rentals and Operating Leases 17,075
629 Miscellaneous Contracted Services 529,590
631 Supplies and Materials for Maintenance and Operations 373,502
632 Textbooks and Other Reading Materials 743,504
633 Testing Materials 809
634 Food Service 339,052
639 General Supplies and Materials 897,653
641 Travel and Subsistence -- Employee and Student 92,053
642 Insurance and Bonding Costs 5,405
643 Election Expense 980
649 Miscellaneous Operating Costs/Fees and Dues 26,136
659 Other Debt Services Fees 2,050
662 Building Purchase, Construction, and/or Improvements 3,868,667
663 Furniture & Equipment - $5,000 or more per unit cost 72,528
131 Inventory Purchases 7,965
217 Operating Transfers, Loans and Reimbursements 848

573/575/592 Miscellaneous Refunds/Reimbursements to Campuses 3,687

Total 25,795,950  
 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The report above represents all expenditures made during the month of November 2017. The detailed check 
information is available upon request. 
 

                                         
 
   

28



LAMAR CONSOLIDATED I.S.D.
GENERAL FUND

YEAR TO DATE CASH RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES
(BUDGET AND ACTUAL)

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 

PERCENT
AMENDED BUDGET ACTUAL/

CASH RECEIPTS BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET

5700-LOCAL REVENUES 163,404,252.00 85,143,317.00 (78,260,935.00) 52.1%

5800-STATE PROGRAM REVENUES 99,718,336.00 41,910,063.00 (57,808,273.00) 42.0%
  

5900-FEDERAL PROGRAM REVENUES 2,925,000.00 686,193.00 (2,238,807.00) 23.5%

TOTAL- REVENUES 266,047,588.00 127,739,573.00 (138,308,015.00) 48.0%

EXPENDITURES

6100-PAYROLL COSTS 221,523,369.00 72,798,690.00 148,724,679.00 32.9%
 

6200-PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTED SVCS. 24,847,564.00 7,205,859.00 17,641,705.00 29.0%
  

6300-SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS 13,571,160.00 3,592,539.00 9,978,621.00 26.5%
  

6400-OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 5,698,460.00 1,158,393.00 4,540,067.00 20.3%
  

6600-CAPITAL OUTLAY 3,739,379.00 978,224.00 2,761,155.00 26.2%

TOTAL-EXPENDITURES 269,379,932.00 85,733,705.00 183,646,227.00 31.8%

29



Lamar CISD
Local Investment Pools
as of December 31, 2017

BEGINNING TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL MONTH END
ACCOUNT NAME BALANCE DEPOSIT WITHDRAWAL INTEREST BALANCE

TexPool accounts are as follows:
Food Service 2,541,583.21 0.00 0.00 2,539.39 2,544,122.60
General Account 47,191,299.52 0.00 19,983,231.66 38,860.98 27,246,928.84
Health Insurance 1,684,435.41 1,194,898.33 1,900,000.00 1,916.04 981,249.78
Workmen's Comp 332,157.17 38,333.33 40,000.00 350.41 330,840.91
Property Tax 797,462.41 42,057,832.98 0.00 14,029.60 42,869,324.99
Vending Contract Sponsor 480,941.01 0.00 0.00 480.51 481,421.52
Deferred Compensation 2.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.55
Debt Service Series 2007 5,166.55 0.00 0.00 5.18 5,171.73
Capital Projects Series 2005 230,424.85 0.00 0.00 230.19 230,655.04
Student Activity Funds 37,337.22 0.00 0.00 37.33 37,374.55
Taylor Ray Donation Account 54.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 54.72
Capital Projects Series 2007 211,564.72 0.00 0.00 211.39 211,776.11
Common Threads Donation 53,856.97 0.00 0.00 53.81 53,910.78
Debt Service Series 2008 4,365.87 0.00 0.00 4.36 4,370.23
Debt Service 2012A 10,761.63 0.00 0.00 10.78 10,772.41
Debt Service 2012B 7,478.52 0.00 0.00 7.47 7,485.99
Debt Service 2014A 3,500.64 0.00 0.00 3.45 3,504.09
Debt Service 2014B 8,707.84 0.00 0.00 8.76 8,716.60
Debt Service 2013 4,337.39 0.00 0.00 4.36 4,341.75
Debt Service 2013A 77,776.93 0.00 0.00 77.75 77,854.68
Debt Service 2015 15,079.55 0.00 0.00 15.07 15,094.62
Capital Projects 2015 155,924.37 0.00 0.00 155.74 156,080.11
Debt Service 2016A 6,988.70 0.00 0.00 6.99 6,995.69
Debt Service 2016B 1,839.12 0.00 0.00 1.77 1,840.89
Debt Service 2017 175,868.79 0.00 0.00 175.74 176,044.53
Debt Service 2017 Capitalized Interest 2,024,284.60 0.00 0.00 2,022.55 2,026,307.15
Capital Projects 2017 8,376,117.10 0.00 4,274,424.72 4,180.70 4,105,873.08

 
Lone Star Investment Pool Government Overnight Fund  
Capital Projects Fund 5,079.06 0.00 0.00 5.04 5,084.10
Workers' Comp 729,206.37 0.00 0.00 723.42 729,929.79
Property Tax Fund 32,532.12 0.00 0.00 32.27 32,564.39
General Fund 2,617,852.24 0.00 0.00 2,597.08 2,620,449.32
Food Service Fund 91,538.71 0.00 0.00 90.81 91,629.52
Debt Service Series 1996 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01
Capital Project Series 1998 708.75 0.00 0.00 0.70 709.45
Debt Service Series 1990 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.04
Debt Service Series 1999 2.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.43
Capital Project Series 1999 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01
Capital Projects 2007 388.52 0.00 0.00 0.39 388.91
Capital Projects 2008 0.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.31
Capital Projects 2012A 43.37 0.00 0.00 0.04 43.41
Capital Projects 2014B 17.21 0.00 0.00 0.02 17.23
Capital Projects 2015 2,159,413.40 0.00 0.00 2,142.28 2,161,555.68
Debt Service Series 2015 1,906,882.34 0.00 0.00 1,891.75 1,908,774.09
Capital Projects 2017 9,684,467.97 0.00 0.00 9,607.64 9,694,075.61

 
MBIA Texas CLASS Fund
General Account 15,631,769.50 0.00 0.00 18,631.22 15,650,400.72
Capital Project Series 1998 921.37 0.00 0.00 1.10 922.47
Capital Projects Series 2007 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00
Debt Service Series 2007 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00
Capital Projects Series 2012A 8,227,041.72 0.00 666,472.85 9,412.55 7,569,981.42
Debt Service 2015 959,552.66 0.00 0.00 1,143.69 960,696.35
Capital Projects 2017 25,166,684.99 0.00 0.00 25,212.09 25,191,897.08

  
TEXSTAR  
Capital Projects Series 2007 751.65 0.00 0.00 0.73 752.38
Debt Service Series 2008  13.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.86
Capital Projects Series 2008 979,740.09 0.00 0.00 978.75 980,718.84
Debt Service Series 2012A 40.45 0.00 0.00 0.01 40.46
Debt Service Series 2012B 1.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.64
Capital Projects Series 2012A 12.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.21
Debt Service 2013 2.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.67
Capital Projects 2014A 0.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.74
Capital Projects 2014B 2.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.65
Debt Service 2015 3,338,741.55 0.00 0.00 3,335.38 3,342,076.93
Capital Projects 2015 46,866,265.00 0.00 6,130,259.42 43,417.41 40,779,422.99
Capital Projects 2017 25,109,776.34 0.00 0.00 25,084.47 25,134,860.81

 
TEXAS TERM/DAILY Fund
Capital Projects Series 2007 1,017,744.77 0.00 0.00 1,048.89 1,018,793.66
Capital Projects Series 2008 142.54 0.00 0.00 0.15 142.69
Capital Projects Series 2012A 57.23 0.00 0.00 0.06 57.29
Capital Projects Series 2014A 0.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.32
Capital Projects Series 2014B 2,258,574.75 0.00 0.00 2,327.68 2,260,902.43
Debt Service 2015 136,356.45 0.00 0.00 140.53 136,496.98
Capital Projects 2015 15,339,695.64 0.00 0.00 15,809.05 15,355,504.69
Capital Projects 2017 25,167,889.17 0.00 0.00 25,937.97 25,193,827.14

 
  AVG. RATE CURRENT MONTH  

ACCOUNT TYPE OF RETURN EARNINGS
  

TEXPOOL ACCOUNT INTEREST 1.18 $65,390.32  
 

LONE STAR  ACCOUNT INTEREST 1.17 $17,091.44  
 

MBIA TEXAS CLASS ACCOUNT INTEREST 1.41 $54,400.65  
  

TEXSTAR ACCOUNT INTEREST 1.18 $72,816.75

TEXAS TERM/DAILY ACCOUNT INTEREST 1.21 $45,264.33

TOTAL CURRENT MONTH EARNINGS $254,963.49

EARNINGS 9-01-17 THRU 11-30-17  $713,786.20
  
TOTAL CURRENT SCHOOL YEAR EARNINGS $968,749.6930



  
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF  

BAND AND ORCHESTRA INSTRUMENTS, EQUIPMENT, RELATED ITEMS AND SERVICES 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve all vendors who responded to the proposal for band and 
orchestra instruments, equipment, related items and services for the District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
RFP 02-2018RL requested catalog pricing discounts to purchase new or refurbished musical 
instruments and equipment, sheet music, related items and services for use in the District’s 
Secondary Fine Arts programs. This type of award is beneficial to the District because it allows 
the Fine Arts Department a wide variety of items to select from, while ensuring that the District is 
compliant with purchasing regulations according to TEC 44.031 and federal procurement 
guidelines as per the Education Department General Administrative Regulations (EDGAR).     
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
The intent of this proposal is to establish a discount percentage off catalog or published list 
prices for each of the categories of items specific to Fine Arts musical instrument parts and 
supplies. The categories included in the bid are: 
 
New Instruments  Sheet Music 
Music Equipment Refurbished Instruments 
Music Supplies Repair Work 
  
The Director of Fine Arts worked with the Purchasing Department on bid specifications, 
evaluation, and award recommendation. 
 
Vendors will be utilized for the diverse fine arts needs across the district.  The contracts will be 
awarded for one year with 4 automatic one-year renewal options.  Either party may provide a 
30-day advance written notice of intent to cancel prior to the annual termination.  
 
The procurement shall commence upon board approval.  Purchases will be requested by 
individual campuses or district groups utilizing local and federal funds.  
 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer  
  Lamanda Nipps, CTSBO, Purchasing & Materials Manager 
  Ram Estrada, Director of Fine Arts 
 

Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  

 10.A.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

31



 
 
RFP 02-2018RL BAND AND ORCHESTRA INSTRUMENTS, EQUIPMENT, RELATED ITEMS 
AND SERVICES 

 
 
1. AMC Music 
2. Aves Audio Visual System 
3. Collins Music Center 
4. Duquette Piano Service 
5. Fleming Instrument 
6. Fort Bend Music 
7. J.W. Pepper & Son 
8. Katy Violin Shop 
9. K. D.  Music & Arts 
10. Lisle Violin Shop 
11. Loan Star Percussion 
12. Pender's Music 
13. Peripole Inc. 
14. Romeo Music 
15. Sam Ash Music 
16. Shar Music 
17. Steve Weiss Music 
18. Sweetwater Sound 
19. Taylor Music 
20. Terra Nova Violins 
21. Tote Unlimited 
22. Washington Music 
23. Wenger Corporation 
24. Woodwinds & Brasswind, Inc 

32



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CATERING AND BANQUET SERVICES 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve all vendors who responded to the proposal for catering and 
banquet services for the District.   
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
Purchases may be made for food and catering services by each campus or department.  This 
type of award is beneficial to the District as it allows our campuses and departments a variety of 
vendors to select from, while ensuring that the District is compliant with purchasing regulations 
according to TEC 44.031 and EDGAR.    
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
RFP 01-2018RL requested that vendors supply detailed menus with discounted pricing specific 
to LCISD. In addition, vendors provided ordering instructions and delivery options for LCISD 
locations.  Vendor-discounted menus provide Lamar CISD staff the benefit of budgeting and 
overall planning for food expenses. 
 
The RFP was divided into two parts.  Part I included catering and banquet services utilized for 
all administrative events and functions. Working with the Purchasing Department, various 
department staff (who are familiar with the ordering of catering and banquet services) evaluated 
submissions based on an 8-criteria rubric.  After evaluation of the businesses who responded to 
Part I, it is recommended that the award be made to all respondents.  Part II of the procurement 
effort included catered foods served to students in Lamar CISD cafeterias.  This section 
requires vendors to meet National School Nutrition Standards.  Vendors that indicated interest 
in Part II provided the nutritional ingredients of their products as part of their response.  The 
Purchasing and Food Service Departments evaluated all responses for compliance with federal 
guidelines.  Having met the federal nutrition requirements, the vendor recommended for award 
is Chick-fil-a.        
 
This proposal will be awarded as one-year term contract.  Either party may provide a 30-day 
advance written notice of intent to cancel prior to the annual termination. Upon approval, the 
agreement will commence on January 17, 2018. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
   Matt Antignolo, Director Food Services  

Lamanda Nipps, RTSBA, Purchasing & Materials Manager 
         

Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  

10.A.#5. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

33



 
RFP 01-2018RL CATERING AND BANQUET SERVICES  
 
Part I – For administrative events & function use  

1. Alonti Café & Catering 

2. Ben's Chuck Wagon 

3. Chick-Fil-A (Greatwood & Rosenberg)                                                           

4. Clancy Public House 

5. Dish Society 

6. Double Dave's Pizza 

7. Firehouse Subs 

8. Gringo's Mexican Kitchen 

9. IL Primo Pizza 

10. Italian Maid Café 

11. Jersey Mikes 

12. La Cocina 

13. Lone Star Kolache (Katy) 

14. Mama Fu's Asian House 

15. McAlister's 

16. Mr. C's Homestyle Catering 

17. M & M's Kitchen 

18. Old Main Street Bakery 

19. Panera Bread 

20. Russo's (Greatwood New York Pizza) 

21. Papa John's (Rosenberg) 

22. Pepperoni's Pizza 

23. Safari Texas 

24. Schulze's BBQ 

25. Skeeters (Sugar Land) 

26. Southern Ice Cream 

27. The Burger Barn 

28. The Swinging Door 

29. The Western Steakhouse 

30. Whole Foods 

31. Witt's BBQ 

32. Vincek's Smokehouse 
 
 

Part II – For LCISD cafeteria use 
1. Chick-fil-a (Greatwood & Rosenberg) 

34



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BOARD CALENDAR FOR 2018 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

That the Board of Trustees approve the proposed Board Calendar for 2018. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The Board of Trustees has major responsibilities and activities at certain times during   
the year. This calendar outlines a timeline for when these major responsibilities and 
activities should occur. Upon approval, this calendar will be followed unless the Board  
President and Superintendent agree upon changes. 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

10.A.#6. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

35



 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD CALENDAR 

2018 

 

January  Audit Report 

  Hearing on AEIS Report 

  Superintendent’s Evaluation 

 

February School Calendar 

 

March Administrative Contracts  

  

April Employee Contracts 

   

June Graduations  

 Budget Workshop 

  

July Superintendent’s Formative Conference 

 Review District Goals 

 Budget Workshop 

 

August Budget Workshop 

 Public Hearing on Budget 

 Budget Adoption for 2018 – 2019 

 Teacher Appraisal Calendar 

 Current Year Final Budget Amendments 

 Public Hearing on Tax Rate 

 Adoption of Tax Rate for 2018 

 

September District Improvement Plans 

 Campus Improvement Plans 

 School FIRST Report 

 

October Board/Superintendent Team Building 

 

 

36



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 
BLACK HISTORY MONTH 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming February 2018 
as “Black History Month” in the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 

National Black History Month is celebrated during February each year to recognize the 
rich heritage and significant contributions of African-Americans, both past and present. 
 
Lamar CISD schools plan a wide variety of special activities to observe Black History 
Month during February. 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations  
 
 
Approved by: 
 
 
 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 

 10.A.#7a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

37



Resolution 
 

WHEREAS, Black History Month is celebrated throughout the United States during the 

month of February; and 

 

WHEREAS, Black History Month recognizes the rich heritage and significant contributions to 

our lives by African-Americans; and 

 

WHEREAS, schools are in a unique position to share an appreciation of the heritage and 

accomplishments of African-Americans among children from all races and backgrounds; and 

 

WHEREAS, Lamar CISD schools commemorate Black History Month with special activities 

and observances; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated 

Independent School District declare February 2018 as Black History Month in the Lamar 

Consolidated Independent School District and encourage members of our community to share 

in this celebration of American heritage. 

 

Adopted this 16th day of January, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                      ___________________________ 

             James Steenbergen, President 

 

 

 

                                                                                                 

___________________________ 

      Kay Danziger, Secretary 

 

 

38



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION MONTH 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming February 2018 
as “Career and Technical Education Month” in the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
The growing Texas population is becoming less rural, more global and more diverse. 
Our students need to be aware of, and prepared for, all opportunities in the work place. 
Specialized training is imperative. The knowledge necessary for a skilled-labor force in 
Texas starts with Career and Technical Education (CTE) at the secondary level. 
 
Knowing that CTE plays a critical role in student development, proclaiming February 
2018 as “Career and Technical Education Month” will provide the community with a 
clear statement that CTE is valued and very important in the Lamar CISD. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
From a beginning with a limited number of vocational training programs, CTE has 
evolved into a broad system encompassing a variety of challenging fields. CTE features 
diverse subjects that are constantly evolving due to a changing global economy. 
Today’s CTE provides students: 
 

 Academic subject matter taught with a relevance to the real world; 

 Employability skills, from job-related abilities to workplace ethics; 

 Career pathways that link secondary and post-secondary education; and 

 Education for training related to workplace training, skill upgrades and career 
advancement. 

 
For the fall of 2017, Lamar CISD had approximately 8,412 students participating in CTE 
courses from grades 7-12.  
 
Submitted by: Joel Garrett, Director, Career and Technical Education 
   Leslie Haack, Executive Director of Secondary Education 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent    

 10.A.#7b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

39



Resolution 
 

WHEREAS, the Association for Career and Technical Education has designated 

February 1-28, 2018 as Career and Technical Education Month; and 

 

WHEREAS, profound economic and technological changes in our society are 

reflected in the structure and nature of work, placing new and additional 

responsibilities on our educational system; and 

 

WHEREAS, career and technical education provides a career connection and is the 

backbone of a strong, well-educated workforce, which fosters productivity in 

business and industry and contributes to America’s leadership in the international 

marketplace; and 

 

WHEREAS, career and technical education gives high school students experience in 

practical, meaningful applications of skills such as reading, writing and mathematics, 

improving the quality of their education, motivating potential dropouts and giving all 

students leadership opportunities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the ever-increasing cooperative efforts of career and technical 

educators, business and industry stimulate the growth and vitality of our local 

economy and that of the entire nation by preparing graduates for careers that are 

expected to experience the largest and fastest growth in the next decade; 

 

THEREFORE, be it resolved, that the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated 

Independent School District declare February 1-28, 2018 as Career and Technical 

Education Month and urge all citizens to become familiar with the services and 

benefits offered by career and technical education programs and to support these 

programs to enhance work skills and productivity. 

 

 

Adopted this 16th day of January, 2018. 

 

             

James Steenbergen, President 

 

 

 

       Kay Danziger, Secretary 
 

40



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 
SCHOOL COUNSELOR SCHOOL WEEK 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming the week of 
February 5 – 9, 2018 as "School Counselor Week" in the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Professional counselors are valuable members of the educational teams in schools.  
They contribute to the development of children through guidance, counseling, 
consultation, coordination, assessment and program management. 
 
School counselors also work with parents, teachers, administrators and the community 
to optimize student learning. They are important resource persons in understanding and 
responding to student behavior. 
 
School counselors respond daily to crises in students' lives. These crises include  issues 
such as suicide, abuse, drug and alcohol use, pregnancy and family problems. 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
 
 
Approved by: 
 
 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 10.A.#7c. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

41



Resolution 

WHEREAS, School Counselors help students in public schools reach their full 

potential; and  

WHEREAS, School Counselors are committed to helping students explore their 

abilities, strengths, interests and talents as these traits relate to career awareness 

and development; and 

WHEREAS, School Counselors help parents focus on ways to further the 

educational, personal and social growth of their children; and 

WHEREAS, School Counselors work with teachers and other educators to help 

students explore their potential and set realistic goals for themselves; and  

WHEREAS, School Counselors identify and utilize community resources that 

enhance and supplement comprehensive school counseling programs and help 

students become productive members of society.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Trustees of the Lamar 

Consolidated Independent School District recognize the importance of school 

counseling programs, which are an integral part of the educational process that 

enables all students to achieve success in school and declare the week of February 

5 – 9, 2018 as School Counselor Week in the Lamar Consolidated Independent 

School District.  

Adopted this 16th day of January, 2018. 

 

_________________________ 

                                                                       James Steenbergen, President 

 

 

_________________________ 

                                                                       Kay Danziger, Secretary 

42



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO THE TEXAS GENERAL LAND 
OFFICE AGREEMENT FOR THE EMERGENCY INTERRUPTIBLE LOAD 

SERVICE PROGRAM 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the emergency interruptible load service 
program agreement with Links EP, LLC., through The Texas General Land 
Office. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT) encourages customer 
participation to address the increasing need for electricity and infrastructure 
limitations.  To address this need ERCOT created the program called “Demand 
Response”. This is an opportunity to get paid to reduce electricity usage when 
ERCOT needs to reduce demand because of operational conditions.  By doing 
so, this will help to prevent grid failure, and get paid by ERCOT for being a stand-
by resource.  ERCOT will pay the district even if we are not asked to curtail.   
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval Links EP, LLC will continue Lamar CISD’s enrollment in the 
Demand Response Program. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
    Aaron Morgan, Region 4 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  

 10.A.#8. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

43



 

 

Exhibit F - LINKS EP DEMAND RESPONSE  

 

 
DEMAND RESPONSE SERVICES:  Customer (as defined below) wishes to participate in Program(s) and to retain 

Seller to arrange for participation in the Programs described below and in the Demand Response Services Attachment 

DR-1 attached hereto (the “Services”).   The Parties acknowledge that Seller and Customer will utilize Links EP, LLC 

(“Seller’s Representative”) for fulfillment of certain obligations as outlined in this Exhibit (as defined below). 

TERM:  This Exhibit is attached to and made a part of the Retail Sales Interlocal Agreement dated February 1, 2018 

between Seller and Customer (the “Master Agreement”) and will become effective on the date it is signed by both 

Parties (the “Effective Date”).   The initial term of this Exhibit shall commence on the Effective Date and continue for 

a period of 36 Months from the Effective Date, unless earlier terminated by either Party pursuant to the terms herein 

(“Initial Term”).   This Exhibit shall automatically renew on a month-to-month basis (the “Renewal Period”) upon the 

expiration of the Initial Term, unless at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the Term (as it may have been 

renewed), either Party provides written notice of termination to the other Party.  The Initial Term, together with any 

Renewal Period(s) is referred to herein as the “Term”.  The expiration or termination of this Exhibit shall not affect 

any Program (as defined below) or affect or excuse the performance by either Party of obligations of any Program 

awards or pending bids, including Customer load participation, payment awards, pending bids, which existed prior to 

the date of such termination or expiration, or that by their nature survive such expiration or termination.  This Exhibit 

shall continue in effect with respect to any such Attachment DR-1 or related exhibits entered into hereunder prior to 

the end of the Term and in each case, until the Parties have fulfilled all obligations with respect to such Participating 

Loads (as defined below).  
 

CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Customer acknowledges that Seller exercises no independent control 

over the equipment necessary to provide either demand response services or standby generation, or for any associated 

payments thereof.  Customer recognizes that Seller will have no liability or responsibility for the failure of either 

demand response or standby generation equipment to perform as required in order to fulfill the services requested by 

Customer. 

ASSIGNMENT TO CAVALLO:  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the this Exhibit or the Master 

Agreement, if, subsequent to the date of this Exhibit, Seller (1) is prohibited by law from providing or otherwise 

arranging demand response or standby generation services to Customer, or (2) is in default under this Exhibit, Seller, 

Customer and Cavallo (as defined below) agree that Cavallo will provide or arrange for demand response and/or 

standby generation services directly to Customer pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in this Exhibit and 

Attachment DR-1 as applicable.  In this event, Customer shall be conclusively deemed to have incurred no actual 

damages. 

DEFINITIONS: 

As used herein, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below: 

“Exhibit F” means this Demand Response Exhibit and all exhibits and attachments attached hereto. 

“Cavallo” means Cavallo Energy Texas LLC, a Texas limited liability company  

 “Curtailment Event” means a test or an event requiring either the reduction of participating load, the injection of 

generator power, or both, which can be initiated during a Program by Seller’s Representative, ERCOT or the TDU as 

appropriate. 

“Customer” means the “Customer”, and its authorized facilities, as identified in the Master Agreement. 

“ERCOT Protocols and PUC Rules” means all protocols and procedures, including those commonly known as the 

ERCOT Nodal Protocols as adopted by ERCOT, and the applicable rules and regulations of the PUC, in each case as 

may be amended from time to time.  

 

44



“ERS” means ERCOT’s emergency response service used to assist in maintaining or restoring ERCOT’s system.  

“ERS Capacity” means the amount of retail electricity consumption that Customer is capable of interrupting or 

curtailing in accordance with ERCOT or TDU requirements. 

“ERS Management Services” means services to qualify, schedule, bid, deploy, and settle with ERCOT for the 

purposes of offering Customer’s load interruption capacity for ERS consistent with ERS Protocols and PUC Rules. 

“ERS Resource” means either a generator contracted to provide ERS by injecting energy to ERCOT’s system, or an 

end-user’s load contracted to provide ERS by removing demand from ERCOT’s system. 

“Links EP System” means Links EP equipment, software, Links Energy Portal, and communications to monitor onsite 

energy information and remotely activate participating sites.   

“Master Agreement” shall have the meaning set forth in the Section entitled “Term” above. 

“Participating Load” means Customer’s demand response capacity that is contracted into a Program. 

“Party” or “Parties” means, individually or collectively, the parties to this Exhibit. 

“Program” means load curtailment programs including but not limited to ERS, , Load Acting as a Resource (“LaaR”), 

TDU sponsored programs, and load curtailment programs of Seller designed to help Customer reduce capacity-related 

TDU costs and/or to  receive or avoid high prices in real-time or day-ahead markets. 

“Prudent Industry Practices” means practices, methods and acts engaged in or approved by a significant portion of the 

power procurement and scheduling industry which, in the exercise of reasonable judgment at the time the decision 

was made, would reasonably have been expected to achieve desired results consistent with good business practices, 

reliability criteria, safety considerations and expediency; provided, however, that Prudent Industry Practices is not 

limited to any particular practice, but instead includes a range of acceptable practices methods and acts. 

“Seller” means the Texas General Land Office. 

“Seller’s Representative” means Links EP, LLC. 

“Services” shall have the meaning set forth in the Section entitled “Demand Response Services” above. 

“Tax” or “Taxes” means any income, gross receipts, profits, capital stock or duty, franchise, withholding, payroll, 

social security, workers compensation, unemployment, disability, property, ad valorem, stamp, excise, severance, 

occupation, service, sales, use, license, lease, transfer, import, export, value added, alternative minimum, estimated or 

other similar tax (including any fee, assessment, or other charge in the nature of or in lieu of any tax) imposed by any 

Tax Authority, and any interest, penalties, or additional amounts in respect of the foregoing.   

“Tax Authority” means, with respect to any Tax, the governmental entity or political subdivision thereof that imposes 

such Tax, and the agency (if any) charged with the collection of such Tax for such governmental entity or political 

subdivision, including the Internal Revenue Service. 

“Term” shall have the meaning set forth in the Section entitled “Term” above. 

SITE 

1) Site Qualification.  Seller, or Seller’s Representative, shall: 

a) collect from the Customer certain preliminary information about Customer’s ERS Capacity.  Required 

preliminary information may include service address, ESI ID, primary purpose of loads behind meter, data 

regarding on-site generation, if any, and letter of authorization to collect usage and load information from 

45



the TDU, and 

b) request historical usage data from the TDU, and 

c) analyze historical data to assess minimum curtailable load, to pre-qualify for each Program, and evaluate 

economics for Links EP System installation.   

2) Site Commitment.   

a) Seller or Seller’s Representative shall present ERS Capacity and Program recommendations to the 

Customer, and, if accepted by the Customer, such recommendations shall be documented in Attachment 

DR-1, and such capacity, once accepted by ERCOT or the TDU, shall become a Participating Load under 

this Exhibit. 

3) Site Enablement. 

a) For each Participating Load, Seller’s Representative shall install, operate, test and maintain Links EP 

System. 

b) Seller’s Representative shall assist Customer with the process of qualifying its sites to offer demand 

response capacity through coordination, documentation, communications and testing. 

c) Seller’s Representative shall undertake reasonable action to enroll fully qualified Participating Loads into 

appropriate Programs as authorized by Customer. 

4) Operation.   

a) Seller’s Representative shall provide enrollment, scheduling and load management for Participating Loads 

as appropriate for each Program under Attachment DR-1. 

b) Seller’s Representative, in compliance with the rules of each Program, will coordinate Program provider 

calls through an information control center and will notify Customer of any demand response event or test 

initiation and again when each event or test has been terminated.  Seller’s Representative will provide 

updates to Customer as Program rule changes are implemented by the Program provider that affect 

operations or revenues. 

c) Seller’s Representative shall verify settlement calculations and payments as applicable, and confirm such 

calculations with Customer’s bookkeeper.   

d) Seller’s Representative shall remit payments to the Customer as set forth in this Exhibit and related 

Attachment DR-1 

5) Links Energy Portal 

a) Seller’s Representative shall provide a secure web-based energy management application for Customer to 

access data on demand response Programs, curtailment events, and Participating Loads. 

b) Seller’s Representative hereby grants to Customer and its designated number of authorized users, for the 

term of the Exhibit, a non-exclusive, non-assignable right and license to the Links EP System. 

c) The Parties agree that Seller’s Representative shall own all right, title, and interest in Seller’s 

Representative’s portal (but not in Seller’s portal) and any modification, enhancement, extension, or 

derivative work to the Seller’s Representative portal.   Intellectual property rights includes all hardware, 

software, design, and integration along with the look and feel of the portal.  Performance of Services or 

this Exhibit does not in any way transfer ownership rights to the portal. 

46



d) All portal data and information is provided on an “as-is” and “as available” basis.  Seller, and Seller’s 

Representative (i) make no express or implied representations, warranties, covenants as to the accuracy, 

completeness or relevance of the information, data, opinions, or comments or any direct or indirect 

recommendations included in providing the Services, or suggested by the data, and (ii) Customer should 

rely solely on its independent judgments, analysis, assumptions, estimates, studies, computations, 

experience and knowledge with respect to the Services or participation in the Programs. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CUSTOMER   

(a) Program Performance.  Customer agrees to make commercially reasonable efforts to meet the performance 

requirements for the Services.   Seller, or Seller’s Representative, will rely on Customer to provide accurate 

information including, but not limited to, that information needed by ERCOT in connection with the demand 

response management services rendered hereunder and needed by Seller to otherwise perform its obligations 

hereunder. 

(b) Equipment. If applicable, Customer shall allow Seller, or its authorized representatives, subject to 

Customer prior approval in writing, to install the necessary support equipment and communications pursuant to 

Attachment B to participate in the Program(s). During the Term of this Agreement, Customer will not modify, tamper 

with or disconnect the meter, the communication equipment or any connections or interfaces to the meter or 

communication equipment.  

(c) Change in Ability to Perform.  Customer will inform Seller’s Representative immediately of any 

unplanned reduction or unavailability of its capacity to provide such demand response services and provide Seller’s 

Representative with written documentation of the reason for its inability to meet the requirements of the Program(s). 

Such conditions may include equipment failures, Force Majeure events or un-forecasted reductions in production. 

(d) Exclusivity.   Customer shall not enroll Participating Loads with a demand response provider other than 

Seller or Seller’s Representative, or concurrently enroll meters for any other Programs. 

(e) Standby Generators.  As applicable, Customer shall maintain, or shall arrange for maintenance by others 

of standby generators, switch gear and related equipment in good working order, if any, and shall remain in good 

standing in regards to any applicable federal, state or local environmental regulations, used to power a Participating 

Load during a Curtailment Event. 

(f) Enablement.  Customer has installed, or caused to be installed, and will maintain the necessary 

equipment, controls procedures, practices and training to ensure the safety of persons and property in the event of a 

curtailment event and subsequent restoration of electricity to any of its facilities participating in Programs under this 

Exhibit, and will comply with all applicable availability testing as required by the Program providers. 

(g) Assignment of Remote Activation.  Customer hereby assigns remote activation rights for Participating 

Loads to Seller or Seller’s Representative.  Such assignment permits Seller or Seller’s Representative to remotely 

curtail load and activate generators, as applicable, and resume normal operations in response to dispatch orders for 

applicable Programs; provided, however, that neither Seller nor Seller’s Representative shall remotely operate 

Customer’s generator(s) for use in any Program while such generator is being used by Customer for emergency 

backup power purposes.   

(h) Participating Load Curtailment.  Customer authorizes Seller or Seller’s Representative to monitor and 

remotely activate applicable switches to reduce each Participating Load by its contracted capacity within the required 

timeframe under the rules for the applicable Program.  Customer authorizes Seller or Seller’s Representative, as the 

controlling entity of the Participating Load, in conjunction with remotely controlling such Participating Load to 

comply with testing and curtailment rules for contracted loads as defined in Attachment DR-1.  

(i) Seller’s Representative.   Customer acknowledges that Seller has designated Seller’s Representative to 

fulfill certain obligations of Seller pursuant to this Exhibit.   As evidenced by Customer’s acknowledgement of 

47



Attachment DR-1, during the term of this Exhibit, Seller’s Representative shall provide the Services for the benefit of 

Customer in accordance with Prudent Industry Practices and Attachment DR-1. 

(j) Customer Contact Information. Customer shall provide Seller and Seller’s Representative with up to date 

contact information during the term of this agreement as defined in Attachment A. 

(k) Letter of Authorization for Installation of Pulse Equipment.   As required to effectuate performance 

hereunder and as authorized by Customer, Customer will provide Seller and Seller’s Representative with authorization 

to install pulse equipment as defined in Attachment B. 

SECTION 1 FEES AND PAYMENT   

Compensation for the Services and remittances pursuant to the applicable Program, is as follows and further outlined 

in Attachment DR-1: 

1.02 Proceeds.  Proceeds from Customer’s participation in Programs shall be distributed pursuant to Attachment 

DR-1. 

1.03 Services Fee.  As compensation for performance by Seller, or Seller’s Representative, of the Services for 

each Participating Load under this Exhibit, Seller’s Representative shall withhold, or cause to be withheld, the 

remaining percentage of proceeds after remitting the revenue sharing percentage listed for each Participating Load by 

site number in Attachment DR-1 (the “Services Fee”).   

1.04 Remittance to Customer.  Seller’s Representative will remit, or cause to be remitted, to Customer all 

remaining proceeds after deduction for the Services Fee and other authorized charges as described herein. 

1.05 Invoices and Payments.  Settlement Statements and invoices shall be sent to the Customer at:    

Lamar CISD  

3911 Avenue I 

Rosenberg, Texas 77471             

 

1.06 Records.  Customer (or any of its agents, auditors, or consultants) shall have the right upon five (5) business 

days’ notice to examine the applicable books and records relating to Customer kept by Seller or Seller’s 

Representative.  Seller or Seller’s Representative shall make available to Customer at Seller’s Representative’s 

principal place of business all applicable records, documents, and other materials pertaining to Customer. 

SECTION 2 REPRESENTATIONS 

2.01 Representations.  Customer, Seller and Seller’s Representative each hereby represents as of the Effective 

Date that (a) it is duly formed and validly existing in the jurisdiction of its formation, (b) it has all authority to execute 

and perform the obligations set forth in this Exhibit, (c) this Exhibit  has been duly executed and delivered by such 

Party, and (d) this Exhibit  represents the legal, valid, and binding obligations of such Party, enforceable against it in 

accordance with the terms, except as enforceability may be limited by sovereign immunity of Seller (which expressly 

is not waived by Seller hereunder, either as to suit or liability) or governmental immunity of Customer (which 

expressly is not waived by Customer hereunder either as to suit or liability), bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar 

laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and general principles of equity. 

2.02 Obligations Following Termination.    Expiration or termination of this Exhibit shall not relieve any Party of 

liability that has accrued or arisen prior to the date of such expiration or termination. 

2.03 Independent Contractor.  Except as provided in this Exhibit and, subject to Seller’s written authorization, 

Seller’s Representative shall have the full power and authority to select the means, methods, and manner of performing 

the Services under this Exhibit, and shall be responsible to the Seller and Customer only for the contracted Services.  

Performance of the Services under this Exhibit shall comply with Prudent Industry Practices and with the Seller and 

Customer’s specific written recommendations or instructions, if any, and shall be performed subject to the overall 

48



direction of Customer.  No employees of Seller or Seller’s Representative are, or shall be deemed to be, employees of 

Customer.  Seller’s Representative shall be responsible for payment of all Taxes arising from activities under this 

Exhibit, including, by way of illustration but not limitation, federal and state income, sales and use taxes, social 

security taxes, unemployment insurance taxes, and any other taxes or business license fees as required. 

2.04 Appointment.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Exhibit, Customer hereby appoints and authorizes 

Seller, and Seller’s Representative, to act as its independent contractor and agent for the purposes described herein.   

2.05 Certain Limitations.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, Seller’s Representative shall 

have no authority to and shall not (and shall not permit any of its employees, contractors, or representatives to) on 

behalf of the Seller or Customer: (a) settle or waive any material claims of Customer or enforce any material rights of 

Customer except as provided for pursuant to a Program; (b) enter into, amend, or terminate any contract of Customer; 

(c) pledge, mortgage, encumber, create any lien on, or make any license or exchange of, any property or assets of 

Customer; or (d) take any actions contemplated by the terms of this Exhibit without prior approval of such actions by 

Seller or Customer as applicable. 

2.06   ERCOT Affirmations.  Customer affirms the following: 

(a)  Customer controls the ERS Resource, as defined in the ERCOT Protocols and herein, and is hereby providing 

written authorization for Seller and Seller’s Representative (i) to obtain historical meter data or other information 

as required by ERCOT, (ii) to submit ERS offers on its behalf and (iii) to represent Customer in all matters 

before ERCOT concerning Customer’s provision of ERS; 

(b) Seller and Seller’s Representative shall comply with and be bound by applicable ERCOT Protocols and PUC 

Rules in connection with remotely controlling Customer’s generator(s); 

(c) Except when being used for standby power during an emergency, the capacity being offered under ERS is not 

capacity that is separately obligated under a separate Program to respond during any of the same hours occurring 

in the contracted ERS Time Period.   

(d) Customer has arranged for Seller’s Representative, as the controlling entity of the ERS Capacity in conjunction 

with remotely controlling such ERS Capacity, to remain familiar with any applicable federal, state or local 

environmental regulations that apply to the use of any generator in the provision of ERS Capacity, and that the 

use of such generator(s) to provide ERS would not violate those regulations.  This provision applies to both ERS 

Generators and to the use of backup generation by ERS Loads, as both terms are defined in the ERCOT 

Protocols. 

SECTION 3 MISCELLANEOUS 

3.01 Amendments.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Agreement, any provision of this Exhibit may 

be modified or supplemented only by an instrument in writing signed by Seller, Customer, Cavallo, and Seller’s 

Representative, and any provision of this Exhibit may be waived by the affected Party so long as such waiver is in 

writing, provided, however, that no waiver of any breach or default of any provision of this Exhibit shall be deemed 

a waiver of any subsequent breach or default.  Any such amendment or waiver shall be binding upon all Parties hereto. 

3.02 Survival.  The obligations of the parties concerning payment under Section 1 shall survive the expiration or 

early termination of this Exhibit for a period necessary to accomplish payment to any Party as contemplated in Section 

1 or to resolve a disputed payment as contemplated in Section 1.  Also, any obligation of the Parties concerning any 

Services provided for on Attachment DR-1 and any associated documents, the term of which obligation extends 

beyond termination or expiration, shall remain in effect until satisfaction or earlier termination of such Service.  In 

addition, each representation and warranty made herein or pursuant hereto shall survive the making of such 

representation and warranty, and no Party shall be deemed to have waived, by reason of taking or failing to take any 

action hereunder, any default that may arise by reason of such representation or warranty proving to have been false 

or misleading, notwithstanding that such Party may have had notice or knowledge or reason to believe that such 

representation or warranty was false or misleading at the time such Party took or failed to take such action. 

49



 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Exhibit to be executed by their authorized 

representatives the date shown below. 

Texas General Land Office (Seller) 

 

By:         

Name:       

Title:       

Date: ________________________________________ 

 

SA___________________    Deputy______________ 

            DIV_________________    GC _______________   

 

THE PERSON SIGNING THIS EXHIBIT ON BEHALF OF THE CUSTOMER CERTIFIES THAT THEY 

ARE AUTHORIZED TO LEGALLY OBLIGATE THE CUSTOMER. 

 

CUSTOMER: LAMAR CONSOLIDATED ISD 

 

By:         

Name:       

Title:       

Date: ________________________________________  _ 

 

 

THE PERSON SIGNING THIS EXHIBIT ON BEHALF OF CAVALLO CERTIFIES THAT THEY ARE 

AUTHORIZED TO LEGALLY OBLIGATE CAVALLO.   CAVALLO ENERGY TEXAS LLC IS A SIGNATORY 

TO THIS EXHIBIT FOR PURPOSES OF AGREEING TO ITS OBLIGATIONS TO PERFORM CERTAIN 

OBLIGATIONS FOR SELLER AND CUSTOMER AS PROVIDED HEREIN. 

 

 

CAVALLO ENERGY TEXAS LLC 

 

By:         

Name:       

Title:       

Date: _________________________________________ 

 

 

THE PERSON SIGNING THIS EXHIBIT ON BEHALF OF SELLER’S REPRESENTATIVE CERTIFIES THAT 

HEIS AUTHORIZED TO LEGALLY OBLIGATE SELLER’S REPRESENTATIVE.   SELLER’S 

REPRESENTATIVE IS A SIGNATORY TO THIS EXHIBIT FOR PURPOSES OF AGREEING TO ITS 

OBLIGATIONS TO PERFORM CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS FOR SELLER AND CUSTOMER AS PROVIDED 

HEREIN. 

 

LINKS EP, LLC 

50



 

By:         

Name:        

Title:        

Date: _________________________________________ 

  

51



Attachment DR-1 

Emergency Response Services 

Program Description: 

a) The Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT) enables program participants to earn revenue for 

availability to manage supply and demand to emergency conditions on the power grid.  

b) ERCOT will deploy ERS (whether by test or actual event deployment) a minimum of one time per year.  

c) An ERS Resource may not participate in any other demand response program in ERCOT during any hours 

that they are committed to ERS. 

Monthly Settlement Terms: For the ERS Program, Seller’s Representative will remit payments to Customer within 

30 days from the end of the applicable Program Period after Seller’s Representative receives payment from ERCOT. 

a. Revenue Sharing – For Customer’s demand response capacity sales to ERCOT, the parties 

acknowledge that Seller’s Representative will receive revenues, based off customer capacity 

obligation submitted and awarded multiplied by the availability percentage determined by ERCOT 

in the corresponding auction period. Customer will receive 80% (Eighty Percent) of the Demand 

Response settlement amount. 

b. Monthly Settlement – Monthly settlement terms with Customers for the applicable Services are set 

out in the Exhibits attached hereto. The Parties acknowledge that fees received from ERCOT will 

be administered in accordance with the financial settlement process in the ERCOT Protocols. The 

Parties agree that any adjustments subsequent to the initial ERCOT settlement statement shall be 

remitted to the Party owed. The Parties recognize that Emergency Response Services (“ERS”) 

disbursements from ERCOT may occur less frequently than monthly. 

Program Rules: 

Program Periods 

Feb. 1 through May 31st, June 1 through Sept. 30 and Oct. 1 through Jan. 31 (each 

"program period", ERS events may be called upon during the "Time Periods" elected by 

the Customer. 

Time Period Name Time Period Hours 

Business Hours 1 Hours Ending 0600 – 0800 (5:00:00a.m. to 8:00:00a.m.) 

  Monday through Friday except ERCOT Holidays 

Business Hours 2 Hours Ending 0900 - 1300 (8:00:00a.m. to 1:00:00p.m.) 

  Monday through Friday except ERCOT Holidays.  

Business Hours 3 Hours Ending 1400 - 1600 (1:00:00p.m. to 4:00:00p.m.) 

  Monday through Friday except ERCOT Holidays.   

Business Hours 4 Hours Ending 1700 - 1900 (4:00:00p.m. to 7:00:00p.m.)  

  Monday through Friday except ERCOT Holidays.   

Business Hours 5 Hours Ending 2000 - 2200 (7:00:00p.m. to 10:00:00p.m.)  

  Monday through Friday except ERCOT Holidays.   

Business Hours 6 All other hours   

Notification  Customer will have a maximum of 30 minutes advance notice 

Event Frequency Minimum one time per Program Period (one test) 

52



 

 ESI ID Service Address  

1   

2   

3   

4   

5   

6   

7   

8   

9   

10   

 

Estimated Capacity (kW) 

Program 

Period 

Program 

Hours 1 

Program 

Hours 2 

Program 

Hours 3 

Program 

Hours 4 

Program 

Hours 5 

Program 

Hours 6 

Feb – May             

June – Sept             

Oct – Jan             

 

 

 

  

CUSTOMER:                 SELLER’S REPRESENTATIVE 

LINKS EP, LLC 

By:        

Printed Name:          

Title:           

Date:    

By:        

Printed Name:    

Title:    

Date:    

53



Attachment A 

Demand Response Program - Contact Information Form 

 

Customer:  
Street Address: 
City, State Zip Code:                                                                              
            

Phone calls will be placed upon initiation and termination of an event using an automated 

communication system.  Please provide the name, primary and/or secondary number for 

individuals (in call order) to be contacted during the beginning and end of an event.  These 

contacts should only include personnel that are responsible for implementing the demand 

response measures. Once confirmation is received from any contact on the list the system will 

make no additional calls. Confirmation is achieved once the recipient presses any numeric key, 

listens to the message, and then presses “1” to confirm.  Phone calls are the primary source of 

notification for an event.  Simultaneously, an e-mail notification will be sent to all the email 

addresses provided below.  Emails are a secondary source of notification as an FYI of an event.  

 
Please fill in the required information below for EVENT issues: 

 

Name 
Mobile Phone 

Number  
Office Phone Number Email Address 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

 

Please fill in the required information below for NON-EVENT issues.  
 

Name Phone Number E-mail Address 

   

 

 
NOTE: The person whose information is provided in the NON-Event informational box will not be contacted 
during an event. 

 

 

Please contact the NOC at Links EP either by phone at (888) 313-9654  

or by email at ersnotifications@linksep.com if you have any questions. 

 

54



Attachment B 

Letter of Authorization for Installation of Pulse Equipment (LOA) 

Date:  

Attn:  

TDSP(s):  

Re: Installation of Pulse Equipment 

 

Lamar CISD______________ (“Customer”) grants Links EP, LLC permission to act on behalf 

of the Customer to order advanced metering service for the following ESI IDs. 

ESI ID Number                                                                   Service Address 

As required 

 

 

 

Your assistance in this matter is as always greatly appreciated.  If you have questions or if I may 

be of additional assistance please let me know. 

Regards, 

 

Signature:          

Name:                                      

Title:                        

Company:                                                 

Address:                                            

City:                                           

State:                        

Zip:           

Phone:           

55



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CENTERPOINT ENERGY TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
FOR FOSTER HIGH SCHOOL NATATORIUM 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the CenterPoint Energy terms and conditions 
package for the installation of overhead and underground electric service at Foster High 
School Natatorium in the amount of $30,906.19 and authorize the Board President to 
execute the agreement documents. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The terms and conditions are required to be executed for CenterPoint Energy to 
provide electric service for Foster High School Natatorium. CenterPoint documents are 
separated into overhead ($13,806.19) and underground ($17,100.00) work for a 
combined total of $30,906.19 for the electric service. 
 
These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget. 
 
  
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval, the Board President will execute the agreement documents and 
CenterPoint Energy will begin design and installation of the permanent electrical service 
for Foster High School Natatorium. 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
   

 10.A.#9. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



  
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CENTERPOINT ENERGY TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

AND FACILITIES EXTENSION AGREEMENT FOR FULSHEAR HIGH SCHOOL 
NATATORIUM 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the CenterPoint Energy terms and conditions and 
facilities extension agreement package for the installation of underground electric 
service at Fulshear High School Natatorium in the amount of $19,200 and authorize the 
Board President to execute the agreement documents. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The terms and conditions are required to be executed for CenterPoint Energy to 
provide electric service for Fulshear High School Natatorium.  
 
These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget. 
 
  
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval, the Board President will execute the agreement documents and 
CenterPoint Energy will begin design and installation of the permanent electrical service 
for Fulshear High School Natatorium. 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
   

 10.A.#10. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

84



85



James Steenbergen

Board President

86



James Steenbergen

Board President

87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



  
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MATERIALS TESTING  

FOR CULVER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Terracon, Inc. for materials testing for Culver 
Elementary School in the total amount of $84,890 and authorize the Board President to 
execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Materials testing is a professional service that the District must contract directly. These 
funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Materials testing services will generate reports and verify that materials are installed correctly 
as per the specifications. These reports are crucial in verifying the quality of the construction 
of Culver Elementary School.  
 
  
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 
 

 10.A.#11. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

101



December 7, 2017 

Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 
Attn: Mr. J. Kevin McKeever 
Administrator of Operations 
3911 Avenue I 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

lrerracan 

Subject: Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services 
LCISD Thomas R. Culver, Ill Elementary School 
Briarwood Crossing Dr. and Coopers Hill Trail, Pleak, Texas 
Terracon Proposal P92171578 

Dear Mr. McKeever: 

Terracon Consultants, Inc. (Terracon) is pleased to submit this proposal to provide construction 
materials engineering and testing services for the above referenced project. In this proposal we 
present our understanding of the scope of the project, our proposed services, and our budget 
estimate. 

Terracon provided geotechnical services for this project. Our presence on this project and 
commitment to responsive quality services will make Terracon a valuable asset to the project. 

A) PROJECT INFORMATION 

The site is located at Briarwood Crossing Dr. and Coopers Hill Trail in Pleak, Texas. The project 
involves the construction of an elementary school with an approximate footprint of 95,000 sf. The 
building foundation will consist of a structural slab with drilled and underreamed piers. The 
superstructure will consist of a structural steel single-story building with mezzanine and masonry 
walls. In addition, civil work includes water, sanitary, and storm sewer utilities with site paving (6, 
7, and 8 inch thick) supported by 6 inches of stabilized subgrade. 

Terracon was provided with the following construction documents for preparation of this proposal: 

• Terracon Consultants Geotechnical Report 92175312 dated October 19, 2017 

• 95% Drawings prepared by VLK Architects, Inc. 

Terracon Consultants, Inc. 11555 Clay Road , Suite 100 Houston, Texas 770~3 
P [713] 690 8989 F 1713] 690 8787 terracon .com 

Environmental a facil1ties a Gcotectinical a Materials 

102



Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services 
Lamar Consolidated ISD Culver Elementary School 
Briarwood Crossing Dr. and Coopers Hill Trail, Pleak, TX 
December 7, 2017 Terracon Proposal No. P92171578 

lrerracon 
If selected for this project, Terracon requests that we be placed on the distribution of all plan 
revisions. 

B} SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Terracon prepared the following scope of services based on our review and understanding of the 
documents listed above: 

Earthwork: 

1. Sample building pad subgrade, natural site materials, cement stabilized sand, treated 
pavement subgrade, utility backfill, and base. Prepare and test the samples for 
Atterberg Limits (ASTM D4318), moisture-density relationship {ASTM D698, ASTM 
0558, and ASTM D1557). 

2. Sample cement-sand backfill for utility trenches, mold specimens, and perform 
compressive strength tests in the laboratory (ASTM D1633). 

3. Evaluate the subgrade soil for proposed chemically treated pavement subgrade. 

4. Observe the chemical treatment process for the pavement subgrade. 

5. Perform field gradation tests of treated subgrade. 

6. Measure the depth of treated subgrade using phenolphthalein. 

7. Observe proofrolling operations of the building pad subgrade and pavement subgrades; 
and perform density tests of the building pad subgrade, cement stabilfzed sand, treated 
pavement subgrade, utility backfill, and base using the nuclear method (ASTM D6938) 
to determine the moisture content and percent compaction of the soil materials. 

Foundations: 

1. Observe the installation of the drilled pier foundations. For each pier observed, 
information regarding shaft depth, auger diameter, and chained belling tool diameter 
will be documented. The chained belling tool diameter will be measured when 
extended above ground for each bell size. 

2. Obtain pocket penetrometer readings on soil cuttings removed during excavation at or 
near the bearing stratum and document the approximate shear strength of the soil. 

Responsive Resourceful Reliable P age 12 

103



Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services 
Lamar Consolidated ISD Culver Elementary School 

Briarwood Crossing Dr. and Coopers Hill Trail, Pleak, TX 
December 7, 2017 Terracon Proposal No. P92171578 

lferracon 
3. Perform compressive tests of concrete test cylinders cast in the field (ASTM C1231 or 

C617, C39). 

Cast-in-Place Concrete: 

1. Sample and test the fresh concrete for each mix. Perform tests for slump, air content, 
and concrete temperature only; and cast test specimens (ASTM C172, C31, C143, 
C173 or C231 , and C1064). Terracon understands that the contractor will be 
responsible for maintaining the initial curing temperature of the concrete test 
specimens. Terracon will record the initial curing temperatures only when conditioned 
curing boxes are provided by the contractor. 

2. Concrete will be sampled at a frequency of 1 set of test cylinders every 50 cubic yards 
of structural concrete and every 125 cubic yards of paving, sidewalks, and area paving. 
Terracon requests that a copy of the approved mix design(s) be provided to us prior to 
placement of the concrete. 

3. Perform compressive strength tests of concrete test cylinders cast in the field (ASTM 
C1231 , C39). Four 6" x 12" concrete cylinders per set will be prepared for strength 
testing (1 for 7-day, 2 for 28-days and 1 for 56 days). If 4" x 8" cylinders are used, a set 
of 5 will be cast (1 for 7 days, 3 for 28 days, and 1 for 56 days 

4. Observe reinforcing steel prior to concrete placement. We will observe the rebar size, 
spacing and configuration. Terracon recommends we be scheduled a minimum of 
24 hours prior to each concrete placement. 

5. Within 48 hours of concrete placement, travel to project site to collect and transport 
hardened concrete test cylinders to Terracon's Houston laboratory for processing, 
curing and testing. 

Spray-Applied Fireproofing Materials: 

Measure fireproofing thickness of in place fireproofing material; sample fireproofing 
material to determine in-place density by displacement method; and measure adhesion 
cohesion of the fireproofing material. Terracon will test the fireproofing in accordance with 
the frequency and testing standards referenced in the IBC code noted in the project 
documents (ASTM E605 and ASTM E736). 

Responsive Resourceful Reliable P age 3 

104



Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services 
Lamar Consolidated ISD Culver Elementary School 
Briarwood Crossing Dr. and Coopers Hill Trail, Pleak, TX 
December 7, 2017 Terracon Proposal No. P92171578 

Masonry: 

1. Observe and document the condition of storage areas for masonry materials. 

2. Observe and document the mixing proportions of grout used during construction. 

3. Observe the reinforcing steel in CMU walls and bond beams. 

4. Sample the fresh grout during construction and cast grout prisms (ASTM C1019} for 
compressive strength tests. 

5. Observe fabrication of CMU prisms, transport CMU prisms to our laboratory after initial 
curing, and test for compressive strength. 

Structural Steel Welded and Bolted Connections: 

1. Terracon recommends that the general contractor schedule a pre-erection meeting to 
discuss the erection sequence, review welding and bolting requirements and to review 
welder certification records. 

2. Provide a Certified Welding Inspector (CWI) in the field to visually check accessible 
field bolted/welded connections in accordance with applicable AISC and AWS 
specifications. 

3. Perform visual inspections of metal decking for placement including overlap, fastener 
spacing, shear studs for number, pattern, and bond, supports at openings and 
penetrations, and puddle welds pattern, size and quality. 

Project Management/ Administration: 

A project manager will be assigned to the project to review the daily activity and assist in 
scheduling the work. Field and laboratory tests will be reviewed prior to submittal. The 
project manager will be responsible for maintaining the project budget and will oversee the 
preparation of the final test reports. 

Terracon recommends that the general contractor schedule pre-construction meetings 
prior to each phase of our proposed testing and observations to discuss the erection 
sequence, review welding and bolting requirements and to review welder certification 
records. 

Responsive Resourceful Reliable P age 14 

105



Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services 
Lamar Consolidated ISD Culver Elementary School 
Briarwood Crossing Dr. and Coopers Hill Trail, Pleak, TX 

December 7, 2017 Terracon Proposal No. P92171578 

Special Inspections Letter: 

lrerracan 

Upon completion of our services. a special inspection letter will be prepared, if requested. 
The letter will list services we performed and if the results and/ or observations were in 
compliance with the project documents. A copy of our test reports will be available with the 
special inspection letter if requested. 

Scheduling Retests: 

It is the responslblllty of your representative to schedule retests in a like manner to 
scheduling our original services. Terracon shall not be held responsible for 

retests not performed as a result of a failure to schedule our services or any 
subsequent damage caused as a result of a lack of retesting. 

Additional Services: 

If you would like us to perform additional work, please contact us and we will issue a short 
Supplement to Agreement form, or Supplemental Proposal, that outlines the additional 
work to be performed and associated fees. To authorize us to begin work, you simply 
return a signed copy of the Supplemental agreement. 

Mechanically Stabilized Earth (MSE) Walls: 

This proposal excludes materials testing and observations related to mechanically 
stabilized earth (MSE) walls. Should the owner or dient require Terracon to provide 
services on any portion of the MSE wall, Terracon should be requested to provide a 
separate proposal prior to start of construction of the MSE walls. Terracon requires an 
internal cursory review of the MSE wall design. This cursory review is only for internal 
Terracon purposes and is intended to establish the appropriate scope of construction 
materials testing services for the project if it is decided we will accept the assignment. This 
review should not be construed as accepting any design responsibility or providing any 
review capacity for the contractor or owner. 

C) REPORTING 

Results of field tests will be submitted verbally to available personnel at the site. Written reports 
of field tests and observations will be distributed within five business days. Test reports will be 
distributed via email. You will need to provide Terracon with a distribution list prior to the beginning 
of the project. The list will need to include the company name, address, contact person name, 
phone number, and e-mail address for each person. Our reported test locations will typically be 

Responsive Resourceful Reliable Page 15 

106



Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services 
Lamar Consolidated ISD Culver Elementary School 
Briarwood Crossing Dr. and Coopers Hill Trail, Pleak, TX 
December 7, 2017 Terracon Proposal No. P92171578 

llerracon 
estimated by pacing distances and approximating angles and elevations from local control data 
(staking and layout lines) provided by others on site. The accuracy of our locations will be 
dependent on the accuracy, availability and frequency of the control points provided by the client 
and/ or contractor. 

PROJECT STAFFING AND ADMINISTRATION 

Field testing services will be provided on an "as requested" basis when scheduled by your 
representative. A notice of 24 hours (48 hours Is required for structural steel services) is 
required to properly schedule our services. To schedule our services please contact our 
dispatcher at (713) 690-2258. The dispatch office hours are from 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
Messages left after business hours will be checked the following business day. Terracon 
shall not be held responsible for tests not performed as a result of a failure to schedule 
our services or any subsequent damage caused as a result of a lack of testing. 

Terracon recommends that a copy of this proposal be provided to the general contractor 
so they understand our scope of services and schedule us accordingly. Please note that 
the number of tests and trips described in the Scope of Services does not constitute a 
minimum or maximum number of tests or trips that may be required for this project. 

D) COMPENSATION 

Based on the project information available for our review, we propose an estimate cost of $84,890. 
Services provided will be based on the unit rates included in the attached Cost Estimate. Please 
note that this is only a budget estimate and not a not-to-exceed price. Many factors beyond our 
control, such as weather and the contractor's schedule, will dictate the final fee for our services. 
Quantities for re-tests, cancellations and stand-by time are not included in our fee. 

For services provided on an "as requested" basis, overtime is defined as all hours in excess of 
eight hours per day, outside of the normal hours of 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, 
and all hours worked on weekends and holidays. Overtime rates will be 1.5 times the hourly rate 
quoted. A four hour minimum charge is applicable to all trips made to provide our testing, 
observation and consulting services. The minimum charge is not applicable for trips to the project 
site for sample pickup only. All labor, equipment and transportation charges are billed on a portal 
to portal basis from our office. You will be invoiced on a monthly basis for services actually 
performed and/or as authorized by you or your designated representative. Terracon's total 
invoice fee is due within thirty days following final receipt of invoice. 

Responsive Resourceful Reliable P age 6 

107



Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services 
Lamar Consolidated ISO Culver Elementary School 
Briarwood Crossing Dr. and Coopers Hill Trail, Pleak, TX 
December 7, 2017 Terracon Proposal No. P92171578 

E) SITE ACCESS AND SAFETY 

llerracan 

Client shall secure all necessary site related approvals, permits, licenses, and consents 
necessary to commence and complete the services and will execute any necessary site access 
agreement. Terracon will be responsible for supervision and site safety measures for its own 
employees, but shall not be responsible for the supervision or health and safety precautions for 
any third parties, including Client's contractors, subcontractors, or other parties present at the 
site. 
F) TESTING AND OBSERVATION 

Client understands that testing and observation are discrete sampling procedures, and that such 
procedures indicate conditions only at the depths, locations, and times the procedures were 
performed. Terracon will provide test results and opinions based on tests and field observations 
only for the work tested. Client understands that testing and observation are not continuous or 
exhaustive, and are conducted to reduce - not eliminate - project risk. Client agrees to the level 
or amount of testing performed and the associated risk. Client is responsible (even if delegated 
to contractor) for notifying and scheduling Terracon so Terracon can perform these services. 
Terracon shall not be responsible for the quality and completeness of Client's contractor's work 
or their adherence to the project documents, and Terracon's performance of testing and 
observation services shall not relieve contractor in any way from its responsibility for defects 
discovered in its work, or create a warranty or guarantee. Terracon will not supervise or direct the 
work performed by contractor or its subcontractors and is not responsible for their means and 
methods. 

G) AUTHORIZATION 

This proposal may be accepted by executing the attached Agreement For Services and returning 
an executed copy along with this proposal to Terracon. This proposal for services and 
accompanying limitations shall constitute the exclusive terms, conditions and services to be 
performed for this project. This proposal is valid only if authorized within sixty days from the listed 
proposal date. Terracon cannot begin field and laboratory services without a signed 
Agreement for Services. 

Responsive Resourceful Reliable P age 17 

108



Proposal for Construction Materials Testing Services 
Lamar Consolidated ISD Culver Elementary School 

Briarwood Crossing Dr. and Coopers Hill Trail, Pleak, TX 
December 7, 2017 Terracon Proposal No. P92171578 

1rerracon 

We appreciate this opportunity of working with you and we look forward to working with you in the 

future. 

Sincerely, 

Terracon Consultants, Inc. 
(TBPE Firm Registration No. F-3272) 

Mark D. Wells, P.E., PMP 
Senior Engineer 

Attachments: 
( 1 ) Cost Estimate 

(2) Agreement For Services 

Responsive Resourceful Reliable 

Chad C. Gordon, P.E. 
Materials Services Manager 

P :, g e 18 

109



COST ESTIMATE 
LCISD Culver Elementary School 

Briarwood Crossing Dr. and Coopers Hill Trail, Pleak, Texas 

Terracon Proposal P92171578 

Field Representative, Regular Hours 200 hours 

Field Representative. Overtime Hours 40 hours 

Nuclear Density Gauge 40 trip 

Lime Determination 2 each 

Moisture Density Relationship 8 each 

Atterberg Limits 8 each 

Cement Stabilrzed Sand 12 each 

Vehicle Charge 40 trip 

Subtotal, Earthwork 

FOUNDATION $ 

Senior Field Representative, Regular Hours 160 hours 

Senior Field Representative, Overtime Hours 40 hours 

Concrete Compressive Strength 80 each 

Vehicle Charge 20 trip 

Sample Pickup (Inclusive of labor and vehicle charge) 4 trip 

Subtotal, Foundations 

CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE 

Field Representative, Regular Hours 220 hours 

Field Representative, Overtime Hours 60 hours 

Concrete Compressive Strength 420 each 

Vehicle Charge 40 trip 

Sample Pickup (inclusive of labor and vehicle charge) 10 trip 

Subtotal, Cast-In-Place Concrete 

STRUCTURAL STEE1~ 

Certified Welding Inspector, Regular Hours 40 hours 

Field Representative, Regular Hours 8 hours 

Grout Compressive Strength (sets of 6) 24 each 

Vehicle Charge 10 trip 

Ultrasonic Equiment 2 trip 

Sample Pickup (inclusive of labor and vehicle charge) 1 trip 

Subtotal, Structural Steel 

FIREPROOFIN G 
I 

Field Representative, Regular Hours 64 hours 

Vehicle Charge 15 trip 

Adhesion/Cohesion 30 each 

Density 30 each 

Subtotal, Fireproofing 

$ 46.00 $ 9,200.00 
$ 69.00 $ 2,760.00 
$ 60.00 $ 2,400.00 
$ 300.00 $ 600.00 
$ 165.00 $ 1,320.00 
$ 65.00 $ 520.00 
$ 60.00 $ 720.00 
$ 60.00 $ 2,400.00 

s 19.920.00 

$ 46.00 $ 7,360.00 
$ 69.00 $ 2,760.00 
$ 16.00 $ 1,280.00 
$ 60.00 $ 1,200.00 
$ 150.00 $ 600.00 

s 13.200.00 

$ 46.00 $ 10,120.00 
$ 69.00 $ 4,140.00 
$ 16.00 $ 6,720.00 
$ 60.00 $ 2,400.00 
$ 150.00 $ 1,500.00 

s 24.880.00 

$ 90.00 $ 3,600.00 

$ 46.00 $ 368.00 
$ 35.00 $ 840.00 
$ 60.00 $ 600.00 

$ 100.00 $ 200.00 
$ 150.00 $ 150.00 

$ 5.758.00 

$ 46.00 $ 2,944.00 

$ 60.00 $ 900.00 
$ 25.00 $ 750.00 

$ 30.00 $ 900.00 
$ 5,494.00 

110



llerr~ con 
COST ESTIMATE 

LCISD Culwr Elementary School 

Briarwood Crossing Dr. and Coopers HIii Trail, Pleak, Texas 

Terr! c!'n Prop!'!!! ! P92f?'157!! 
MASONRf,' 

Field Representative, Regular Mours 48 nours 

Grout Compressive Strength (sets of 4} 48 each 

Vehicle Charge 12 trip 

Sample Pickup (inclusive of labor and vehicle charge} 12 trip 
Subtotal, Masonry 

Project Manager & Administration 

Vehicle Charge 

Subtotal, Project Management & Administration 

ESTIMATED COST 

$ 46.UO $ 2,208.00 

$ 35.00 $ 1,680.00 
$ 60.00 $ 720.00 
$ 150.00 $ 1,800.00 

s 6.408.00 

9,230.00 

$ 84,890.00 

111



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
This AGRl!l!MENT is between Lamar Consolidated ISO ('Client') and Terracon Consultants, Inc. ('Consultant') for Services to be provided by Consultant 
for Client on the LCISD Culver Elementary School project ('Project"), as described in the Project Information section of Consultant's Proposal dated ·1· 

12/07/2017 ('Proposal") unless the Project is otherwise described In Exhibit A to this Agreement (which section or Exhibit Is Incorporated into this 
Agreement). 

1, Scope of Services. The scope of Consultant's services is described in the Scope of Services section of the Proposal ("Services'), unless Services • 
are otherwise described in Exhibit B to this Agreement {which section or exhibit is incorporated into this Agreement). Portions of the Services may be 
subcontracted. When Consullant subcontrac:15 to other individuals or companies, then consultant wlfl collect from Client on the Subcontractors' behalf. 
Consultant's Services do not Include the Investigation or detection of, nor do recommendations in Consultant's reports address the presence or 
prevention of biological pollutants (e.g., mold, fungi, bacteria, viruses, or their byproducts) or occupant safety issues, such as vulnerability to natural 
disasters, terrorism, or violence. If Services include purchase of software, Cllent wlll execute a separate software license agreement. Consultant's 
findings, opinions, and recommendations are based solely upon data and information obtained by and furnished to Consultant at the time of the 
Services. · 

2, Acceptance/ Termination. Client agrees that execution of this Agreement is a matt!rial element of the consideration Consultant requires to 
execute the Services, and if Services are Initiated by Consultant prior to execution of this Agreement as an accommodation for Client at Client's 
request, both parties shall consider that commencement of Services constitutes formal acceptance of all terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
Additional terms and conditions may be added or changed only by written amendment to this Agreement signed by both parties. In the event Client 
uses a purchase order or other form to administer this Agreement, !he use of such form shall be for convenience purposes only and any addltlonar or 
conflicting terms lt contains are stricken. This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without prior written consent of the other party. Either , 
party may terminate this Agreement or the Services upon written notice to the other. In such case, Consultant shall be paid ccms incurred and fees ' 
earned to the date of termination plus reasonable costs of closing the Project. 

3. Change Orders. Ciient may request changes to the scope of Services by altering or adding to the Services to be performed. If Client so requests, 
Consultant wifl return to Client a statement (or supplemental proposal) of the change setting forth an adjustment to the Services and fees for the 
requested changes. Following Cllenfs review, Client shall provide written acceptance. If Client does not follow these procedures, but Instead directs, 
authorizes, or permits Consultant to perfoml changed or addltlonal work, the Services are changed accordingly and Consultant will be paid for this work 
according to the fees stated or its current fee schedule. lf project conditions change materially from those observed at the site or described to 
Consultant at lhe time of proposaf, Consultant is entitled to a change order equitably adjusting its Services and fee. 

4. Compensation and T•rm• of Payment. Client shall pay compensation for the Services performed at the fees stated In the Compensation 
section of lhe Proposal unless fees are otherwise stated in Exhibit C to this Agreement (which section or E,chibit is incorporated into this Agreement). If 
not stated in either, fees will be according to Consultant's current fee schedule. Fee schedules are valid for the calendar year In which they are issued. 
F88S do not include sales tax. Client will pay applicable sales tax as required by law. Consultant may Invoice Cllent at least monthly and payment is 
due upon receipt of Invoice. Client shall notify Consultant In writing, at the address below, within 15 days of the date of the Invoice ff Client objects to 
any portion of the charges on the invoice, and shall promptly pay the undisputed portion. Client shaU pay a finance fee of 1.5% per month, but not 
exceeding the maxlmum rate allowed by law, for all unpaid amounts 30 days or older. Client agrees to pay all collecUon-related costs that Consultant 
incurs, Including attorney fees. Consultant may suspend Services for lack of Umely payment. It is the responsibility of Client to determine whether 
federal, state, or local prevailing wage requirements apply and to notify Consultant if prevailing wages apply. If it is later detennined that prevailing 
wages apply, and Consultant was not previously notified by Client, Client agrees to pay the prevailing wage from that point forward, as well as a 
retroactive payment adjustment to bring previously paid amounts in line wtlh prevailing wages. Client also agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless Consult.ant from any alleged violations made by any governmental agency regulating prevailing wage activity for falling to pay prevaillng 
wages, Including the payment of any fines or peMltles. 

a. Third Party Reliance. This Agreement and the Services provided are for Consultant and Client's sole benefit and exclusive use with no third party 
beneficiaries intended. Reliance upon the Services and any work product Is limited to Client. and is not intended for third parties o1her than !hose who 
have executed Consultant's reliance agreement, subject to the prior approval of Consult.ant end Client. 

6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. CLIENT AND CONSULTANT HAVE EVALUATED THE RISKS AND REWARDS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS 
PROJECT, INCLUDING CONSULTANT'S FEE RELATIVE TO TI-IE RISKS ASSUMED, AND AGREE TO ALLOCATE CERTAIN OF THE 
ASSOCIATED RISKS. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TI-IE TOTAL AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF CONSUL TANT (AND ITS 
RELATED CORPORATIONS AND EMPLOYEES) TO CLIENT AND THIRD PARTIES GRANTED RELIANCE JS LIMITED TO THE GREATER OF 
$50,000 OR CONSULTANT'S FEE, FOR ANY AND ALL INJURIES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, LOSSES, OR EXPENSES (INCLUDING ATIORNEY 
AND EXPERT FEES) ARISING OUT OF CONSULTANT'S SERVICES OR THIS AGREEMENT. PRIOR TO ACCE;PTANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT 
AND UPON WRITTEN REQUEST FROM CLIENT, CONSULTANT MAY NEGOTIATE A HIGHER LIMITATION FOR ADDITIONAL 
CONSIDERATION IN THE FORM OF A SURCHARGE TO BE ADDED TO THE AMOUNT STATED IN THE COMPENSATION SECTION OF THE 
PROPOSAL. THIS LIMITATION SHALL APPLY REGARDLESS OF AVAILABLE PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE, 
CAUSE($), OR THE THEORY OF LIABILITY, INCWDING NEGLIGENCE, INDEMNITY, OR OTI-IER RECOVERY. THIS LIMITATION SHALL NOT 
APPLY TO THE EXl'ENT THE DAMAGE IS PAID UNDER CONSULTANT'S COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY POLICY. 

7. lndemnity/Statut• of Limitations. Consultant and Client shall indemnify and hold hamiless the other and their respective employees from and 
against legal liablllty for clalms, losses, damages, and expenses to the extent such claims, losses, damages, or expenses are legally determined to be 
caused by their negligent acts, errors, or omissions. In the event such c1alms, losses, damages, or expenses are legally detemilned to be caused by the 
joint or concurrent negligence of Consultant and Client, they shall be borne by each party In proportion to its own negligence under comparative fault 
principles. Neither party shall have a duty to defend the other party, and no duty to defend is hereby created by this indemnity provision and such duty 
Is explicitly waived under this Agreement. causes of action arising out of Consultant's Services or this Agreement regardless of cause{s) or the theory 
of liability, including negligence, indemnity or other recovery sharl be deemed to have accrued and the applicable statute of limitations shall commence 
to run not later than the date of Consultant's substantial completion of Services on the project. 

8. Warranty. Consultant will perform the Services In a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordlnarlly exercised by members of the 
profession currently practicing under similar conditions In the same locale. EXCEPT FOR THE STANDARD OF CARE PREVIOUSLY STATED, 
CONSULTANT MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR GUARANTEES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, RELATING TO CONSULTANrs SERVICES AND 
CONSUL TANT DISCLAIMS ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR WARRANTIES IMPOSED BY LAW, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

Page 1 of2 Rev. 10-16 

112



1rerracon1 
Reference Number: ?92171578 

9. Insurance. Consultant represents that It now carries, and will continue to carry: (i) workers' compensation insurance in accordance with the laws of 
the states having Jurisdiction over Consultant's employees who are engaged in the Services, and employer's liability Insurance ($1 ,000,000); (ii) 
commercial general liablflty Insurance ($1 ,000,000 occ / $2,000,000 agg); (Iii) automobile liability insurance ($1,000,000 B.I . and P.O. combined slngle . 
Umlt); and (iv) professional RabUlty insurance ($1,000,000 claim / agg), Certiflca1N of Insurance wlll be provided upon request Client and Consultant 1 

I shall waive subrogation agalnat the other party on all general liability and property coverage. 
10. CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. NEITHER PARTY SHAU. BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR l.05S OF PROFITS OR REVENUE; LOSS OF 

USE OR OPPORTUNITY; LOSS OF GOOD WIU.; COST OF SUBSTITUTE FACILITIES, GOODS, OR SERVICES; COST OF CAPITAL; OR FOR 
ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES. 

11. Dispute Reaolutlon. Client shall not be entitled to assert a Clalm against Consultant based on any theoiy of professional negligence unless and 
unttf Client has obtained the written opinion from a raglstsred, Independent, and reputable engineer, architect, or geologist that Consuttant has violated I 
the standard of care applicable to Consultant's performance of the Services. Client shall provide this opinion to Consultant and the parties shall 
endeavor to resolve the dispute within 30 days, after which Cllent may pursue Its remedies at law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 
according to Kansas law. 

1 Z. Subllurface l!xploratlons. Subsurface condiUons throughout the site may vary from those depicted on logs of discrete borings, test pits, or other 
exploratory services. Client understands Consultant's layout of boring and test locations is approximate and that Consultant may deviate a reasonable 
dlstaooe from those locations. Consultant will take reasonable precautions 1o reduce damage to the site when performing Services; however, Client 
accepts that invasive services such as dr111ing or sampling may damage or alter the site. Site restoration Is not provided unless specllically Included In 
the Services. 

13. T"tlng and ObNrvatlona. Client understands that testing and observation are discrete aampUng procedures, and that such procedures indicate 
condl1fons only at the depths, locations, and times the procedures were perfonned. Consultant will provide test resulls and opinions based on tests and 
field observations only for the work tested. Client understands that testing and observation are not continuous or exhaustive, and are conducted to 
reduce - not eliminate - project risk. Client shall cause all tests and Inspections of the site, materials, and Serv!ces performed by Consultant to be timely 
and property acheduled In order fer the Services to be perfonned In accordance with the plans, specifications, contract documents, and Consultant's 
recommendations. No claims for loss or damage or Injury shall be brought against Consultant by Client or any third party unless ell tests and 
Inspections have been so performed and Consultant's recommendations have been followed. Unless otherwise stated In the Propo$81, Client assumes 
sole responalbility fer determining whether the quantity and the natun, of Services ordered by Client is adequate and sufficient for Client's Intended 
purpose. Cllent is responsible (even if delegated to contractor) for requesting services, and notifying and scheduling Consultant so Consultant can 
perform these Services. Consultant is not responsible for damages caused by Services not performed due to a failure to request or schedule 
Conaullant'a Services. Consultant 1haR not be reaponaible for the quality and completeness of Client's contractor's wor1l or their adherence to the 
project documents, and Consultant's performance of testing and obaervatlon services shall not rellew Client's contractor In any way from Its 
responsibility for defects discovered In Its work, or create a warranty or guarantee. Consuftant wtll not supervise or direct the wor1c: performed by Client's 
contracior or Its subcontractors and Is not responstble for !hair means and methods. The extension of unit prices with quantities to establish a total 
estimated cost does not guarantee a maximum cost to complete the Services. The quantities. when given, are estimates based on contract documents 
and schedules made available at the time of the Proposal. Since schedule, performance, produc:Uon, and charges are directed and/or controlled by 
others, any quantity extensions must be considered as estimated and not a guarantee of maximllll cost 

1 .. sample Disposition, Affected Materltlla, and Indemnity, Samples are consumed In testing or disposed of upon completion of the testing 
procedures (unless stated otherwise In the Services). Client shall fumish or cause to be furnished to Consultant all documents and Information known 
or available to Cllent that relate to the Identity, locatlon, quantity, nature, or characteristic of any hazardous was1B, toxic, radioactive. or contaminated 
materials ("Affected Materialsj at or near the site, and shall immediately transmit new, updated, or revised information as H becom88 avaHable. Client 
agrees that Cornsullant is not responsible for the dlspo5hlon of Affected Materials unle8S speclfically provided in the Services, and that Client Is 
responsible for directing such dlsposl11on. In no event shall Consultant be required to sign a hazardous waste manifest or take l!tfe to any Affected 
Materials. Client shall haVfl the obligation to make au splll or 1'8iea&e notifications ID appropriate governmental agenclBB. The Cllent agrees 1hat 
Consultant nel1her cmated nor contributed to the aesllon or e>dstence of any Affected Materiala conditions at the site snd Consultant &hall not be responsible 
for any clalms, losses, or damages allagadly arising out of Consultant's performance of Services hereunder, or for any darns against Consultant as a 
generator, disposer, or arranger of Affected Materials under f'Bderal, state, or local law or ordinance. 

1 s. Ownership of Document.. Work product, such as reports, logs, data, notes, or calculations, prepared by Consultant shall remain Consultant's 
property. Proprietary concepts, sy&lems, and ideas developed during performance of the Services shall remain the sole property of CoosultBl'll Flies 
ahaH be maintained In general accordance with Conaultant's document retention policies and practices. 

fa. Utllltlell. Clrent shall provide the location and/or arrange for the marking of private ut!Htles and subterranean structures. Consultant shall take 
reasonable precautions to avoid damage or Injury to subterranean structures or utlllt!es. Consultant shall not be responsible for damage to 
subterranean SU'UCtures or utllltles that are not called to Consultant's attention, are not correctly marked, Including by a utility locate service, or are 
Incorrectly shown on the plans furnished to Conaultanl 

17. Site Accea and lafety. Client shall secure all necessary site related approvals, pe,mlts, licenses, and consents necessary to commence and 
complete the Services and will execute any necessary site access agreemenL Conaultant wlll be responsible for supervision and site safety measures 1 

for Its own employees, but shall not be responsible for the supervision or health and safety precautions for any other parties, including Client, Client's 
contraaora, subcontractors, or other parties present at the site. 

Consultant: Terracon ~ Inc. Client Lamar Conaolldated ISD 
By: L ',:! &. v~ ~ "" Date: 1217/2017 By: Date: 

NamelTltle: 
Mark D Welle / 8enlor Project Matert•I• Namemtle: ..,,1..., James Steenbergen I Board President 

Addras: 11SSS Clay lid ht 100 Address: 3111 Avenue I 
Nouaton, TX 77~239 Ro .. nN111e TX 77471 

Phone: (713} 880-8889 Fax: (713~ 890,,l787 Phone: Fax: 
Email: Mark.Wel ..... rracon.corn Email: 

Page 2 of 2 Rev. 10,16 

832-223-0000

113



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BASE COST INCREASE FOR  
REFURBISHED MOVING VAN SEMI-TRAILERS 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of refurbished moving van trailers in an 
amount not to exceed $85,000, along with the approval for budget amendment as necessary.  
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
We expect to realize approximately $10,000 in annual savings by minimizing the need to use 
rental trucks.  Trailers will be pulled by truck tractor to transport equipment to events in which 
Lamar CISD participates, such as band and athletic events. Trailers will be purchased in a 
base model, with a price not to exceed $85,000 per trailer. 
 
This price includes: 

 delivery of a road-ready, DOT certified, 53-foot trailer with 3 curb-side doors, 1 street-
side barn door, and hinged back doors; 

 installation of a 23-foot second deck approximately 45 inches above the main deck, 
safety rails, industry standard load bars and ¾” plywood decking, high durability 
commercial carpet on the second floor; 

 fixed interior stairs, retracting stairs at all trailer side entry points; 

 installation of a full-width dual stage hydraulic ramp with associated mobile power unit; 

 12 feet of custom shelving on the upper deck for instrument storage; 

 installation of 12-volt low-profile interior LED lights (8 upstairs and 5 downstairs); 

 installation of 12-volt exterior flood lights (10 lights); 

 Installation of a power center including a charging circuit, battery, and lights switches 
with voltmeter and USB charging ports; 

 Installation of a roof-mounted solar panel to maintain battery charge without the need 
to plug the trailer into generator power or the tractor. 
 

This price represents 4 trailers with a fully built-out interior. Funding will come from 2011 
available bond funds.  Installation of decal removal, painting, application of exterior wraps, 
etc. may be purchased separately to customize the base trailer according to each campus’s 
needs.  
 
Tractors will be purchased through the transportation budget, which will be offset by rental 
and other fees. 
 
Submitted by: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Mike Jones, Director of Transportation 
   Ram Estrada, Director of Fine Arts 
   Lamanda Nipps, Purchasing and Materials Manager 
   Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 10.A.#12. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

114



  

BACKGROUND 
 
The high school marching bands need to transition to semi-trailers to replace the 48-foot 
gooseneck trailers – the bands have outgrown using the trailers. Our 48-foot trailers offer 
2,700 square feet of storage space, and the 53-foot trailers with a second deck offer 4,240 
square feet of storage space.  One driver can drive the semi-trailer tractor, whereas we have 
used up to three drivers for the 48-foot trailer, District maintenance van and a rental truck.  
 
There is also a benefit in the safety features the semi-trailers offer. Rental vans provide a lift 
gate that have potential for students and adult volunteers to accidentally walk off from a 4-
foot drop. There is also a high risk of our equipment to fall off the narrow lift platform and be 
damaged. There are many hinges on a lift gate where careless hands could get pinched 
during operation. The 53-foot semi-trailers have a hydraulic ramp that rises approximately 30 
inches off the ground at a safe incline, and they offer multiple points of entry. The 48-foot 
trailers only offer one surface for moving and storage, with limited points of entry. It currently 
takes approximately 45 minutes after each event to load trailers and trucks, keeping the 
entire band out later during events.  With multiple entry points on the semi-trailer, students 
and parent volunteers can load more efficiently, allowing students to leave late-night events 
quicker.   
 
Using rental trucks that are not customized to specific needs allows instruments to move 
during transport; this adds unneeded wear on the instruments and impacts the effective life-
span for instruments and an increased need for repair. Many marching band events happen 
at night - the semi-trailers offer the advantage of copious amounts of light both inside the 
trailer as well as outside the trailer.  
 
Transitioning to the 53-foot semi-trailer is now a best practice in many school districts around 
the country to safely and cost-effectively transport the large marching band inventory to and 
from competitive events and football games.  
 
 
  
 
  
 

115



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM: BOARD POLICIES -- FIRST READING 
 
 
The following local policies are attached for review: 
 
 •   Localized Policy Manual Update 109 

 
 

 
  

Local policies are customized to provide a procedure or guidelines to enforce the legal 
policies and district guidelines. 
 
 
 
Resource Person:  Dr. Thomas Randle, Superintendent 
 
 

11.A.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



 
 
 
 
 

 

 

INFORMATION ITEM:  TASB 2016 – 2018 ADVOCACY AGENDA 
 

 
TASB’s 2016 – 2018 Advocacy Agenda was amended by the 2017 Delegate Assembly.  
This agenda is the culmination of the hard work of school board members across the state 
through Grassroots Meetings in 2017, the Legislative Advisory Council meetings 
throughout the two-year agenda cycle, the resolutions process, and, ultimately, the 
Delegate Assembly.  The TASB Advocacy Agenda represents input from trustees in every 
region of the state.  This agenda will guide the Association’s advocacy efforts until the 
2018 Delegate Assembly approves the next biennial agenda. 
 
A copy is provided under separate cover. 
 
 
 
 
Resource Person:    Dr. Thomas Randle, Superintendent 
 
 

 
 

 

   11.A.#2. - PLANNING 

BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

236



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  TAX COLLECTION REPORT 
(AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017) 

 
 
 
Exhibit "A" gives the LCISD collections made during the month of December 31, 

2017. 
 
Exhibit "B" gives the total LCISD collections made this school year from September 1, 

2017 through August 31, 2018. 
 
Exhibit "C" shows the LCISD collections made month-by-month of the 2017-18 roll as 

compared to prior years.  Through December 31, 2017, LCISD had 
collected 51.4 % of the 2017-18 roll. 

 
Exhibit "D" shows the total collections made as compared to the amount that was 

budgeted for 2017-2018. 
 
Exhibit "E" shows the LCISD tax collection analysis for the last six years. 
 
 
 

Resource Person:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 

 
 
 

11.A.#3. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 
 

237



Exhibit ALamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections
December 2017

 
General Fund Debt Service

Taxes Penalty & Collection Total General Fund P & I & Debt Service P & I &
Year Paid Interest Fees Payments Taxes Paid Collection Fees Taxes Paid Collection Fees

17 106,956,840.23$          -$                             -$                         106,956,840.23$            80,026,230.59$            -$                          26,930,609.64$          -$                             
16 69,135.21$                   17,088.78$                  20,166.81$              106,390.80$                   51,727.71$                   32,952.91$               17,407.50$                 4,302.68$                     
15 5,891.33$                     5,709.67$                    4,420.62$                16,021.62$                     4,407.89$                     8,692.67$                 1,483.44$                   1,437.62$                     
14 538.46$                        3,804.45$                    2,443.78$                6,786.69$                       402.80$                        5,290.28$                 135.66$                      957.95$                        
13 (3,763.56)$                    2,354.41$                    1,321.31$                (87.84)$                          (2,815.96)$                    3,082.94$                 (947.60)$                    592.78$                        
12 16,282.50$                   2,145.25$                    994.20$                   19,421.95$                     12,182.74$                   2,599.29$                 4,099.76$                   540.16$                        
11 3,107.90$                     969.70$                       441.12$                   4,518.72$                       2,280.63$                     1,152.71$                 827.27$                      258.11$                        
10 0.96$                            0.91$                           -$                         1.87$                              0.70$                            0.68$                        0.26$                          0.23$                            
09 7.72$                            8.19$                           3.18$                       19.09$                            6.07$                            9.62$                        1.65$                          1.75$                            
08 9.45$                            4.97$                           1.83$                       16.25$                            7.43$                            5.74$                        2.02$                          1.06$                            
07 28.96$                          35.96$                         12.72$                     77.64$                            22.32$                          40.44$                      6.64$                          8.24$                            
06 4.33$                            -$                             -$                         4.33$                              3.72$                            -$                          0.61$                          -$                             
05 832.78$                        1,226.78$                    387.65$                   2,447.21$                       702.91$                        1,423.00$                 129.87$                      191.43$                        
04 564.83$                        898.98$                       276.41$                   1,740.22$                       477.07$                        1,035.60$                 87.76$                        139.79$                        
03 586.64$                        1,015.06$                    229.75$                   1,831.45$                       499.75$                        1,094.86$                 86.89$                        149.95$                        
02 -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                               -$                              -$                          -$                           -$                             
01 266.79$                        517.46$                       111.47$                   895.72$                          266.56$                        628.93$                    0.23$                          -$                             
00 1.82$                            -$                             -$                         1.82$                              1.62$                            -$                          0.20$                          -$                             
99 -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                               -$                              -$                          -$                           -$                             
98 -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                               -$                              -$                          -$                           -$                             

97 & prior -$                              -$                             -$                         -$                               -$                              -$                          -$                           -$                             
 

Totals 107,050,336.35$          35,780.57$                  30,810.85$              107,116,927.77$            80,096,404.55$            58,009.67$               26,953,931.80$          8,581.75$                     
    

238



Exhibit BLamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections

September 1, 2017-August 31, 2018
(Year-To-Date)

Original Adjusted Taxes Penalty & Collection Total Total Taxes
Year Tax Adjustments Tax Paid Interest Fees Payments 12/31/17

17 206,293,212.17$             4,237,448.53$        210,530,660.70$            108,107,859.05$              -$                         -$                        108,107,859.05$             102,422,801.65$          
16 1,814,663.85$                 15,284.80$             1,829,948.65$                 499,157.33$                      105,508.17$            115,534.33$           720,199.83$                    1,330,791.32$              
15 566,874.61$                    18,623.38$             585,497.99$                    27,372.90$                        24,268.36$              17,947.40$             69,588.66$                      558,125.09$                 
14 339,577.64$                    77,625.68$             417,203.32$                    20,395.66$                        9,545.47$                5,680.82$               35,621.95$                      396,807.66$                 
13 277,679.16$                    77,390.07$             355,069.23$                    9,766.10$                          7,253.64$                3,820.76$               20,840.50$                      345,303.13$                 
12 265,479.02$                    80,624.42$             346,103.44$                    43,230.05$                        7,082.73$                2,841.97$               53,154.75$                      302,873.39$                 
11 224,190.26$                    20,101.02$             244,291.28$                    15,495.04$                        4,480.67$                1,411.47$               21,387.18$                      228,796.24$                 
10 181,303.11$                    4,352.89$               185,656.00$                    6,543.86$                          4,050.36$                816.70$                  11,410.92$                      179,112.14$                 
09 159,154.16$                    -$                        159,154.16$                    4,713.60$                          3,643.47$                671.75$                  9,028.82$                        154,440.56$                 
08 153,187.47$                    -$                        153,187.47$                    1,535.58$                          1,674.66$                562.90$                  3,773.14$                        151,651.89$                 
07 174,543.62$                    -$                        174,543.62$                    150.03$                             188.22$                   66.91$                    405.16$                           174,393.59$                 
06 84,556.70$                      -$                        84,556.70$                      1,088.14$                          924.24$                   -$                        2,012.38$                        83,468.56$                   
05 130,312.15$                    -$                        130,312.15$                    883.40$                             1,301.85$                411.94$                  2,597.19$                        129,428.75$                 
04 52,136.73$                      -$                        52,136.73$                      636.66$                             1,018.21$                314.62$                  1,969.49$                        51,500.07$                   
03 39,258.30$                      -$                        39,258.30$                      932.68$                             1,466.42$                301.02$                  2,700.12$                        38,325.62$                   
02 25,886.38$                      -$                        25,886.38$                      389.78$                             618.25$                   116.15$                  1,124.18$                        25,496.60$                   
01 24,301.80$                      -$                        24,301.80$                      266.79$                             517.46$                   111.47$                  895.72$                           24,035.01$                   
00 21,052.70$                      -$                        21,052.70$                      21.40$                               41.51$                     9.16$                      72.07$                             21,031.30$                   
99 21,924.25$                      -$                        21,924.25$                      -$                                   -$                         -$                        -$                                 21,924.25$                   
98 13,781.68$                      -$                        13,781.68$                      -$                                   -$                         -$                        -$                                 13,781.68$                   
97 12,114.62$                      -$                        12,114.62$                      -$                                   -$                         -$                        -$                                 12,114.62$                   
96 5,144.62$                        -$                        5,144.62$                        -$                                   -$                         -$                        -$                                 5,144.62$                     

95 & prior 17,571.87$                      -$                        17,571.87$                      8.32$                                 28.56$                     5.54$                      42.42$                             17,563.55$                   
 

Totals $210,897,906.87 $4,531,450.79 $215,429,357.66 $108,740,446.37 $173,612.25 $150,624.91 $109,064,683.53 $106,688,911.29
   

239



Exhibit C

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
TAX COLLECTION ANALYSIS
PERCENT Y-T-D BY MONTH
FOR CURRENT LEVY ONLY

MONTH 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07

SEPT 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

OCT 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

NOV 0.5% 3.2% 3.2% 2.2% 7.4% 1.9% 2.6% 3.9% 1.9% 1.7% 2.8% 2.1%

DEC 51.4% 50.3% 49.0% 45.3% 45.3% 33.1% 30.2% 33.3% 25.9% 35.4% 31.9% 29.7%

JAN 87.2% 83.9% 82.0% 86.2% 82.9% 82.3% 84.1% 80.7% 80.4% 59.6% 76.4%

FEB 95.6% 95.4% 95.1% 95.5% 95.5% 94.8% 94.3% 93.3% 92.8% 93.5% 93.3%

MAR 96.9% 96.9% 96.8% 97.0% 96.8% 96.4% 96.1% 95.0% 94.8% 95.1% 94.7%

APR 97.5% 97.6% 97.9% 97.8% 97.6% 97.1% 96.9% 96.0% 95.6% 95.9% 95.8%

MAY 98.2% 98.4% 98.2% 98.2% 98.1% 97.9% 97.6% 96.5% 96.4% 96.7% 96.5%

JUNE 98.6% 98.7% 98.6% 98.7% 98.6% 98.3% 98.2% 97.4% 97.2% 97.4% 97.3%

JULY 98.9% 99.0% 98.9% 99.0% 99.0% 98.7% 98.6% 98.0% 97.9% 98.0% 97.8%

AUG 99.1% 99.2% 99.0% 99.2% 99.1% 98.9% 98.8% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2%
 

 
 

 

240



Exhibit D

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
2017-18 TAX COLLECTIONS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017

TAX  YEAR BUDGET COLLECTIONS % OF BUDGET
LCISD TAXES SCHOOL YEAR AMOUNT 12/31/2017 COLLECTED

 
2017 2017-2018 $207,658,560 $108,107,859 52.06%

 
2016 &  Prior 2016-17 & Prior $2,150,000 632,587$               29.42%

TOTAL $209,808,560 $108,740,446 51.83%

241



Exhibit ELAMAR  CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
TAX COLLECTION REPORT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017

SCHOOL YEAR 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
TAX YEAR 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

COLLECTION YEAR
1 Orig. Levy 136,145,655$         142,546,726$         153,118,133$          173,016,530$                 190,749,742$                 206,293,212$                 

1 Collections 140,561,034$         148,220,912$         160,220,428$          178,028,558$                 195,553,464$                 108,107,859$                 
Adj. To Roll     5,652,043$             6,929,880$             8,680,375$              6,473,810$                     6,618,386$                     4,237,449$                     

2 Collections 739,542$                739,176$                1,201,706$              745,585$                        499,157$                        
Adj. To Roll 65,612$                  242,601$                165,920$                (149,323)$                       15,285$                          

3 Collections 315,459$                333,212$                305,374$                27,373$                          
Adj. To Roll 445,748$                (49,699)$                 102,657$                18,623$                          

4  Collections   252,058$                211,870$                20,396$                  
Adj.  To Roll (88,980)$                 113,341$                77,626$                  

5 Collections 225,311$                9,766$                    
Adj. To Roll 138,805$                77,390$                  

6 Collections 43,230$                  
Adj. To Roll 80,624$                  

TOTAL:
COLLECTIONS 142,136,634$         149,514,936$         161,747,903$          178,801,515$                 196,052,622$                 108,107,859$                 
ADJUSTED TAX ROLL 142,439,507$         149,860,240$         162,144,711$          179,359,640$                 197,383,413$                 210,530,661$                 

BALANCE TO
BE COLLECTED 302,873$                345,303$                396,808$                558,125$                        1,330,791$                     102,422,802$                 

ADJ. TAXABLE
VALUE 10,247,077,978$    10,780,924,397$    11,664,667,517$     12,903,107,113$            14,199,734,768$            15,145,545,894$            

TOTAL % COLLECTIONS 99.8% 99.8% 99.8% 99.7% 99.3% 51.4%
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017    

TAX RATE 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005

242



  
INFORMATION ITEM: PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

 
 

Below is a list of invoices that have been approved for payment. 
 
 
BLS Construction 
(Ag Barn #2)       Application # 10 $       30,001.95 
 
C.A. Walker Construction 
(Support Services Center)     Application # 4 $      521,899.89 
 
C.A. Walker Construction 
(Support Services Center)     Application # 5 $   1,032,727.49 
 
Drymalla Construction 
(Carter ES)       Application # 6 $   1,154,077.10 
 
Gamma Construction    
(Bentley ES)         Application # 18A $      100,000.00 
 
IKLO Construction 
(Lamar CHS Band Hall)     Application # 3A $      187,245.00 
 
IKLO Construction 
(Terry HS Band Hall)     Application # 3B $      175,750.00 
 
Johnson Controls 
(Various campuses HVAC)     Application # 4 $          3,856.35 
 
Micro Integration    
(Ag Barn #2)       Application # 1 $          5,722.20 
 
Millis Construction         
(Terry HS Baseball/Softball Complex)   Application # 5 $      687,887.88 
 
Millis Construction         
(Terry HS Baseball/Softball Complex)   Application # 6 $      345,310.75 
 
PBK Architects    
(Bentley ES – Reimbursables)      Application # 12 $          2,000.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Foster HS Natatorium)     Application # 11 $          8,580.00 
 

 11.A.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

243



 
PBK Architects    
(Fulshear HS Natatorium)     Application # 11 $          5,005.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Fulshear HS Shell Space)     Application # 4 $          3,580.53 
 
PBK Architects    
(George Ranch HS Natatorium)    Application # 11 $          7,007.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Roberts MS)       Application # 5 $        21,208.79 
 
PBK Architects    
(Support Services -– Reimbursables)   Application # 4 $             647.58 
 
PBK Architects    
(Terry HS Baseball/Softball Complex)   Application # 9 $          1,536.00 
 
Raba Kistner    
(Campbell ES – Running Track)    Application # 2 $          4,206.40 
 
Raba Kistner    
(Dickinson ES – Playing Field)    Application # 2 $          5,986.25 
 
Raba Kistner 
(Fulshear HS Natatorium)     Application # 3 $          3,041.25 
 
Terracon   
(Carter ES)           Application # 6 $          7,073.50 
 
Terracon   
(Carter ES)           Application # 7 $             482.50 
 
Terracon   
(Lamar CHS Band Hall)     Application # 6 $             593.75 
 
Terracon   
(Support Services Center)     Application # 5 $        11,669.50 
 
Terracon   
(Terry HS Band Hall)     Application # 5 $          1,568.00 
 
Terracon   
(Terry HS Baseball & Softball)    Application # 6 $          3,570.75 
 

244



 
Turner Construction 
(Foster HS Natatorium)     Application # 4 $      769,266.30 
 
Turner Construction 
(Fulshear HS Natatorium)     Application # 4 $      939,963.73 
 
Turner Construction 
(George Ranch HS Natatorium)    Application # 4 $      792,704.23 
 
VLK Architects  
(Ag Barn #2)       Application # 10 $          5,231.37 
 
VLK Architects  
(Ag Barn #2)       Application # 11 $          9,482.05 
 
Winning Way Services 
(Foster HS Natatorium)     Application # 1 $             700.00 
 
Winning Way Services 
(Fulshear HS Natatorium)     Application # 1 $             700.00 
 
Winning Way Services 
(George Ranch HS Natatorium)    Application # 1 $             700.00 
 
 
 
Resource person: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 

245



Monthly Report 
       December 2017  

 Page 1  
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 

Bond Sale 1 Current Budget Committed  
Projected 

Commitments 
Actuals Paid 

Estimated Cost 
at Completion 

Carl Briscoe Bentley Elementary (#24) 22,010,055.00 21,668,081.60 341,973.40 21,290,048.49 22,010,055.00 

Kathleen Joerger Lindsey Elementary 
(#25) 

23,770,861.00 21,993,760.65 1,777,100.35 20,210,216.03 23,770,861.00 

Don Carter Elementary School (#26) 24,959,404.00 22,651,740.50 2,307,663.50 9,459,692.27 24,959,404.00 

FHS Baseball 40,000.00 29,250.00 10,750.00 29,250.00 40,000.00 

FHS Water Plant 990,000.00 708,150.00 281,850.00 116,880.00 990,000.00 

HVAC Web Controls 1,056,000.00 539,600.00 516,400.00 442,242.92 1,056,000.00 

LCHS Band Hall 700,000.00 642,371.50 57,628.50 434,221.34 700,000.00 

Pink Elementary- Foundation 1,056,000.00 1,055,794.57 205.43 1,030,564.39 1,056,000.00 

Natatorium - Foster High School 8,648,880.00 8,541,215.00 107,665.00 2,419,846.68 8,648,880.00 

Natatorium - Fulshear High School 8,832,167.00 8,619,868.00 212,299.00 2,920,894.37 8,832,167.00 

Natatorium - George Ranch High School 9,086,569.00 8,936,366.00 150,203.00 2,906,171.27 9,086,569.00 

Support Services Center 12,146,000.00 11,294,050.00 851,950.00 3,013,439.71 12,146,000.00 

THS Band Hall 700,000.00 659,835.00 40,165.00 401,806.31 700,000.00 

*THS Baseball 2,400,000.00 2,311,628.00 88,372.00 2,033,230.94 2,400,000.00 

Sub Total - Bond Sale 1 116,395,936.00 109,651,710.82 6,744,225.18 66,708,504.72 116,395,936.00 

Bond Sale 2           

Thomas R. Culver, III Elementary School 24,959,404.00 1,686,890.00 23,272,514.00 845,590.24 24,959,404.00 

Fletcher Morgan Elementary School 26,207,374.00 1,002,385.00 25,204,989.00 425,000.00 26,207,374.00 

James W. Roberts Middle School 22,342,493.00 1,454,170.00 20,888,323.00 635,220.52 22,342,493.00 

Fulshear HS Shell 3,849,077.00 269,890.00 3,579,187.00 42,966.44 3,849,077.00 

Satellite Ag Barn 3,786,750.00 189,000.00 3,597,750.00 0.00 3,786,750.00 

Sub Total - Bond Sale 2 81,145,098.00 4,602,335.00 76,542,763.00 1,948,777.20 81,145,098.00 

Grand Total 197,541,034.00 114,254,045.82 83,286,988.18 68,657,281.92 197,541,034.00 

      

Additional Projects Current Budget Committed  
Projected 

Commitments 
Actuals Paid 

Estimated Cost 
at Completion 

Access Controls 800,000.00 40,200.00 759,800.00 21,105.00 800,000.00 

Huggins Elementary School 700,000.00 656,442.48 43,557.52 648,178.55 700,000.00 

Chiller Replacement 1,200,000.00 1,027,572.50 172,427.50 1,022,188.27 1,200,000.00 

Site Lighting 1,600,000.00 91,700.15 1,508,299.85 67,261.99 1,600,000.00 

Grand Total 4,300,000.00 1,815,915.13 2,484,084.87 1,758,733.81 4,300,000.00 

 
PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
Vanir | Rice & Gardner, A Joint Venture, is serving as the Program Manager for the 2014 Bond 
Program for Lamar CISD. In this role, we manage individual projects, and coordinate with architects 
and contractors. We are the liaison between LCISD Administration, Departments, and Schools and 
coordinate all activities necessary to complete each project. 
We also provide program-wide oversight and look for efficiencies, cost reduction, and quality 
assurance opportunities.  
 

Accomplishments This Month: 
 Completed the design of Roberts Middle School. 

 Completed the design of Culver Elementary School. 

 
  

 11.A.#5. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

246



Monthly Report 
       December 2017  

 Page 2  
 

DON CARTER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

247



Monthly Report 
       December 2017  

 Page 3  
 

DON CARTER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 
 

 

 

 
 

THOMAS R. CULVER III ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES: 

 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: May 30, 2017 

 Construction Completion: July 21, 
2018 

OVERVIEW: 

 Construction is 32% complete. 

 Underground utility work is progressing for 
CenterPoint electric connection. 

 Structural steel erection is 95% complete. 

 Roofing is complete at areas A, B, and E.  

 Exterior wall frame progressing. 

 Electrical wiring has begun in area A, B, & 
E. 

 Windows installed at areas A, B, C, & E. 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES: 

 Current Phase: Construction 
Documents 

 Construction Start: 2nd Quarter 2018 

 Construction Completion: 3rd Quarter 
2019 

OVERVIEW: 

 Culver Elementary School site is in the 
Briarwood Crossings subdivision in the 
Village of Pleak. 

 The developer is clearing and grading on 
this section of the subdivision. 

 Plan to issue for bids in January 2018. 

248



Monthly Report 
       December 2017  

 Page 4  
 

ROBERTS MIDDLE SCHOOL 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

FULSHEAR HIGH SCHOOL SHELL SPACE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES: 

 Current Phase: Construction Documents 

 Construction Start: May 2018 

 Construction Completion: August 2018 

OVERVIEW: 

 Construct interior classroom walls and 
room finishes. 

 Construction documents are underway. 

 Plan to issue for bids in January 2018. 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Construction Documents 
 Construction Start: 2nd Quarter 2018 
 Construction Completion: 3rd Quarter 2019 

OVERVIEW 

 Site is on the south side of the Fulshear 
High School campus. 

 Construction documents underway. 
 Plan to issue for bids in January 2018. 

 

249



Monthly Report 
       December 2017  

 Page 5  
 

SUPPORT SERVICES FACILITIES 
  

SCHEDULE MILESTONES: 
 
Maintenance & Operations Building 

 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: May 30, 2017 

 Construction Completion: March 
2018 
 

Support Services Facility 

 Construction Start: March 2018 

 Construction Completion: 
September 2018 

  

OVERVIEW: 
 

Maintenance & Operations Building 

 Construction is 37% complete. 

 Site utility work is complete. 

 Structural concrete foundation is complete. 

 Roof and wall panels are 85% complete. 

 Parking and drives are 60% complete. 

 Installing Electrical, Mechanical, and 
Plumbing in the office area.  

250



Monthly Report 
       December 2017  

 Page 6  
 

BAND HALL ADDITIONS 

Terry High School                                                               Lamar Consolidated High School 

 

 

 

 

 

 
BASEBALL COMPLEX RENOVATIONS 
Terry High School 

 

 

  

SCHEDULE MILESTONES: 
 

 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: 2nd Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: January 
2018 

OVERVIEW: 
 Lamar CHS brick veneer is complete. 

 Terry HS block veneer is underway. 

 Lamar CHS and Terry HS:  
o HVAC, electrical, interior finishes, 

and fire sprinklers being installed. 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES: 
 

 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: 3rd Quarter 
2017 

 Construction Completion: January 
2018 

OVERVIEW: 
 

 Concession building construction is 80% 
complete. 

 Bleachers and press boxes are complete. 
 Dugouts are 80% complete. 
 Site paving is 75% complete. 
 Site fencing is 90% complete. 

251



Monthly Report 
       December 2017  

 Page 7  
 

NATATORIUMS 
Foster High School | Fulshear High School | George Ranch High School 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

SCHEDULE MILESTONES: 
 

 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: 3rd Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 3rd Quarter 
2018 

OVERVIEW: 
 

 Pool walls poured and steel erected at 
George Ranch High School. 

 Pool walls poured and steel erected at 
Fulshear High School. 

 Pool floor poured at Foster High School. 
 

George Ranch High School Foster High School 

Fulshear High School 

252



Monthly Report 
       December 2017  

 Page 8  
 

FOSTER HIGH SCHOOL WATER PLANT UPGRADES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

HVAC WEB-BASED CONTROLS 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
  

SCHEDULE OVERVIEW: 
 

 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: 4th Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 2nd Quarter 
2018 
 

OVERVIEW: 
 

 General Contractor is mobilizing on site. 
 Drilling for water well to begin January 

2018. 

OVERVIEW: 
 

 Foster High School and Field House 
controls are complete. 

 Briscoe Junior High and Central Plant 
controls are complete. 

 Campbell ES, Frost ES, and Pink ES 
controls are complete. 

 Wessendorff MS controls are complete. 

 Currently working on HVAC graphics for 
LCISD. 

SCHEDULE OVERVIEW: 
 

 Current Phase: Construction  

 Construction Start: July 18, 2017 

 Construction Completion: January 
2018 
 

253



Monthly Report 
       December 2017  

 Page 9  
 

ACCESS CONTROLS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

SITE LIGHTING 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

SCHEDULE OVERVIEW: 
 

 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: 4th Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 2nd Quarter 
2018 
 

OVERVIEW: 
 

 Contract has been awarded. 
 Cable installation has started in 

secondary schools. 

 Mock-up of the Access Control 
system will begin at one school to 
confirm installation process. 

SCHEDULE OVERVIEW: 
 

 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: 4th Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 2nd 
Quarter 2018 
 

OVERVIEW: 
 

 Submittals have been reviewed and 
approved. 

 Fixtures have been ordered. 
 Installation of wall packs has 

started at selected facilities. 

254

https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.arcoweb.com/images/CardKey.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.tjsdaily.com/2010_03_01_archive.html&docid=4XZjlbBiwubxZM&tbnid=ZEM8KmhpfrRPtM:&vet=1&w=344&h=326&safe=strict&bih=871&biw=1920&ved=0ahUKEwjQ1OL465nQAhUW-mMKHaZdBhkQMwicASg1MDU&iact=mrc&uact=8


Monthly Report 
       December 2017  

 Page 10  
 

SATELLITE AG BARN #3 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
FUTURE PROJECTS 
 
 
 

 
 

COMPLETED PROJECTS 
Foster High School Baseball Scoreboard  Completed March 2016 
Huggins Elementary School New Parent Drive  Completed May 2017 
New Lindsey Elementary School    Completed October 2017 
Pink Elementary School Repairs    Completed November 2017 
Chiller Replacement at six schools   Completed November 2017 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES: 
 

 Current Phase: Program Development 

 Construction Start: Pending Site 
Selection 

OVERVIEW: 
 

 Satellite Ag Barn #2 and #3 have 
been programmed together. 

 A site for the Satellite Ag Barn #3 
has not been selected. 

 Project is on hold until a site has 
been identified. 

OVERVIEW: 
 

 2014 Bond Sale 2 Remaining 
Project: 

o Morgan Elementary #28. 

255



  

INFORMATION ITEM: PROJECTS FUNDED BY 2011 AVAILABLE BOND FUNDS 
 

The list below are projects that the Board has approved to move forward with 2011 
available funds: 
 
DISTRICT FENCE PROJECT: 
CSP #37-2016ML was approved at the September 2016 Regular Board Meeting. This 
project is now complete.   

Project Budget $450,000 
 

CHILLER REPLACEMENT PROJECT: 
VANIR Rice & Gardner are managing this project.  Estes, McClure and Associates were 
approved at the September 2016 Regular Board Meeting.  CSP 03-2017VRG was 
Board approved in November 2016 to American Mechanical Services.  The chillers 
have been installed and punch list is complete 
 Project budget $1,200,000 
 
PARKING LOT LIGHTING RETROFIT: 
VANIR Rice & Gardner are managing this project.  Siemens has been awarded this 
project and contracts have been completed.  Notice to proceed has been issued. 
Installation has begun. 

Project Budget $1,600,000 
 

HUGGINS PARKING AND PARENT DROPOFF: 
VANIR Rice & Gardner are managing this project. This project is complete. Substantial 
Completion was January 17th. Final payment was approved at the May Board Meeting. 

Project Budget $700,000 
 

ACCESS CONTROL PROJECT: 
VANIR Rice & Gardner are managing this project. KCI Technology has completed final 
documents and RF Quotes have been received. Bowie Elementary School installation 
has started. 

Access Control Budget $800,000 
 

TERRY HIGH BASEBALL PROJECT: 
This project is a 2014 Bond project managed by VANIR Rice & Gardner Notice to 
proceed as been sent and the project is under construction. The stadium seats have 
been installed. This project is near competition. 

Additional Budget of $1,425,000 
 

TOTAL BUDGET FOR AVAILABLE FUND PROJECTS = $6,175,000 
 
 
Resource Person:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 

 11.A.#6. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

256



INFORMATION ITEM: TRANSPORTATION UPDATE 
  
PERSONNEL CHANGES 
The following changes took place during the month: 
 Trainees hired:   2 
 Drivers leaving department  3   
 Full time drivers hired:  3  
 Drivers waiting driving test  7 
 Bus aides hired:   3 
 
Hiring Incentives Paid   Employee   Referrer 
 Initial     5         2 
 Six Month    4         2 
 
ACCIDENTS 
We had the following on the road accidents during the month  
Date                    Bus #                  Action              Location                                       
Preventable              Experience            

12/06/2017 234 Tail swing hit another parked 
bus 

GRHS bus ramp Preventable 3 years 
 

12/07/2017 423 Car backed into the bus GRHS Non 15 years 

12/13/2017 425 Car ran into back of bus FM359EB at FM1463 Non 12 years 

 
 
 
ROUTING AND SCHEDULING 
We have the following routes in operation 
 
 

R  O  U  T  I  N  G  

TRACK REG SPED MIDDAY 
DISTRICT 

VANS 
ALC 

NUMBER 
OF 

DISPLACED 
STUDENTS 

BLUE 29 10 9 2   56 

RED 44 7 10 2   59 

GOLD 26 13 14 1 1 42 

MAROON 50 6 8     36 

PURPLE 20 2 4 1 3 11 

TOTAL 169 38 45 6 4 204 

 
 
 

11.A.#7. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT     

JANUARY 16, 2018 

257



TRAINING AND OTHER EVENTS     
 
Monthly training events continued for all drivers and aides by track.  Sessions were also 
held for flex drivers and BOSs (Bus Operations Specialists). Christmas lunches were 
held at both facilities during the week before Thanksgiving.  
 
Field Trips 

Site Number of 
Trips 

Bus Miles Sped Bus 
Miles 

Truck 
Miles 

White 
Fleet 
Miles 

Rosenberg 254 9,412 136 0 379 

Fulshear 137 9,973 190 1080 0 

 
 
STUDENT DISCIPLINE 
 
A total of 233 discipline reports were issued this month 
 
 
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 
 
The maintenance department responded to 8 breakdowns where the bus needed 
attention or replacement on the road.   
 
The electronic fuel controller is back in service and is generating a new report, providing 
usage breakdown by department and product.  
 

258



 
 
Resource Persons:   Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
    Mike Jones, Director of Transportation 

Number of Transactions Qty

Account :

Product : #2 Diesel 4 82.100

82.100

Account :

Product : Unleaded 31 509.500

509.500

Account :

Product : Unleaded 192 3546.400

Product : #2 Diesel 51 523.900

4070.300

Account :

Product : Unleaded 18 252.200

252.200

Account :

Product : Unleaded 69 1134.000

Product : #2 Diesel 1086 38472.900

39606.900

Account :

Product : Unleaded 35 471.200

471.200

Account :

Product : Unleaded 3 30.500

30.500

Account :

Product : Unleaded 24 397.900

397.900

78 FOODSERVICE

01 $660.88

24Account Totals : $660.88

Rosenberg,Tx 77471

01 $50.65

3Account Totals : $50.65

35Account Totals : $782.68

090 ATHLETICS

5017 Ave I

1155Account Totals : $68,210.77

080 SECURITY

01 $782.68

060 Transportation Rosenberg Regular

01 $1,883.57

02 $66,327.20

053 TECHNICAL SERVICES

01 $418.90

18Account Totals : $418.90

01 $5,890.58

02 $903.18

243Account Totals : $6,793.76

01 $846.31

31Account Totals : $846.31

050 MAINTENANCE

02 $141.54

4Account Totals : $141.54

034 DISTRIBUTION

LAMAR CISD TRANSPORTATION

December 2017 Fuel Report

Amount

001 VOCATIONAL

259



 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  PROPOSED BUDGET CALENDAR  
FISCAL YEAR 2018 - 2019 

 
  
 
 
Attached is the proposed budget calendar for the 2018-2019 school year.  This is 
a tentative calendar and will change if circumstances arise which would warrant 
modification. 
 
 
 
 
 
Resource Person:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
           Yvonne Dawson, RTSBA, Budget & Treasury Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  11.A.#8. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 
1 

260



ADOPTED BUDGET CALENDAR 
FISCAL YEAR:  2018-19 

 
 

January 2018 

Develop budget calendar 

Review and file 2016-17 AFR through TSDS 
Review and file 2017-18 adopted budget through TSDS 

Review position control 

Begin accumulating data for special allocations 

Provide budget calendar for 2018-19 to Board for 

information 

 

February 2018 
 

Update and distribute budget materials to principals 

and budget managers at February Principals meeting.  

(Follow up with budget meetings with Principals and  

Executive Directors) 

 
March 2018 

 
Refine budget assumptions 

Prepare salary studies and cost projections 

Develop initial revenue and expenditure projections 

Assess current year budgetary status 

Budgets entered into MUNIS by campuses/departments 

Central Office review and evaluation of data entered by 
     Campuses/departments 
Superintendent/CFO (and other designated individuals) 
     meet with Principals/Department Heads to discuss their 
     budgets and instructional processes 

 
April/May 2018 

 
Develop preliminary Debt Service and Food Service Fund  
budgets 

Human Resources Department to finalize staffing allocations 

Receive preliminary property values from FBCAD 

 

 

 
 
 
 
                    
 

 

 

 

 

                    

 

 
                 
 

                          
 
 
 
 

 
June 2018 

              Refine budgets as necessary 
Review district/campus plans and alignment with 
preliminary expenditure budgets 

Refine salary/benefit cost projections 

Receive revised property values from FBCAD 

Board Workshop for Budget (Session #1) 

 
 

July 2018 

 

Receive certified property tax values from FBCAD 

Refine revenue/expenditure budgets (all) 

Calculate estimated actual and rollback tax rates 

Board Workshop for Budget (Session #2) 

 
August 2018 

 
Final revenue/expenditure budget adjustments 

Refine all tax rate calculations 

Board Workshop for Budget (Session #3) 
Board Workshop for Budget (Session #4, if needed) 

Budget notice/hearing/adoption (Board of Trustees)  

Tax rate notice/hearing/adoption (Board of Trustees)  
 

 
 

October 2018 – January 2019 
 
Fort Bend County Tax Office to mail tax statements 
Review and file 2017-18 AFR through TSDS 
File 2018-19 adopted budget through TSDS  

 

 
 
     

261



  
 

INFORMATION ITEM: HOLDSWORTH CENTER UPDATE 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The Holdsworth Center experience includes assistance from the Holdsworth District 
Support Team. Throughout the multi-year partnership, the support team will assist Lamar 
CISD in implementing an internally-aligned system for leadership development.  
 
One of the foundational components is a defined understanding of leadership within the 
organization. Throughout the fall semester, 22 principals and directors worked with the 
Holdsworth District Support Team to define the characteristics of an outstanding leader in 
Lamar CISD. 
 
Members of the steering committee will update the School Board on its progress.  
 
 
Resource Persons:  Valerie Vogt, Chief Academic Officer 

Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 

 11.A.#9. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 16, 2018 

262


	January 23 2018 Board Book WITHOUT Closed Session.pdf
	Cover
	Agenda
	Approval of minutes
	December 12, 2017 - Special Meeting (Workshop)
	Minutes Special Meeting December 12 2017.docx

	December 19, 2017 - Special Meeting (Workshop)
	Minutes Special Meeting December 19 2017.docx

	December 21, 2017 - Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes Regular Meeting December 21 2017.docx


	ACTION ITEMS
	Goal: Planning
	Consider approval of Quarterly Investment Report
	Quarterly Investment Cover.doc
	Quartlery Investment Report backup.pdf

	Consider approval of the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 2016 - 2017 year
	Audit.docx

	Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports
	Financial and Investment Reports.docx
	Schedule of Disbursements November 2017.pdf
	MUNIS 953 December 2017 Board Copy.xlsx
	Investment Report December 2017 Board Copy.xls

	Consider approval of purchase of band and orchestra instruments, equipment, related items and services
	Band and Orchestra REVISED 01092018.doc

	Consider approval of catering and banquet services
	Catering and Banquet Services FINAL 01102018.doc

	Consider approval of Board Calendar for 2018
	Board Calendar.docx

	Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming:
	Black History Month
	Black History Month Recommendation.doc
	Black History Month Resolution.doc

	Career and Technical Education Month
	CTE Month.doc
	CTE Proclamation Resolution (002).doc

	School Counselor Week
	School Counselors Week Recommendation.docx
	School Counselors Week Resolution.docx


	Consider approval of amendment to the Texas General Land Office agreement for the emergency interruptible load service program
	Emergency Interruptible Load Service Program.doc
	Texas General Land Office - LinksEP Demand Response Annex - 12 14 2017.docx

	Consider approval of CenterPoint Energy terms and conditions for Foster High School Natatorium
	CenterPoint Energy Terms Conditions Foster High School Natatorium.docx
	CenterPoint Energy Terms  Conditions Foster High School Natatorium BU.pdf

	Consider approval of CenterPoint Energy terms and conditions and facilities extension agreement for Fulshear High School Natatorium
	CenterPoint Energy TC and Facilities Extension Agreement Fulshear HS Natatorium.docx
	CenterPoint Energy TC and Facilities Extension Agreement Fulshear HS Natatorium BU.pdf

	Consider approval of materials testing for Culver Elementary School
	Materials Testing Culver Elementary.docx
	Materials Testing Culver Elementary School BU.pdf

	Consider approval of base cost increase for refurbished moving van semi-trailers
	band trailers 01162018 (003).docx



	INFORMATION ITEMS
	Goal: Planning
	Board Policies for First Reading
	Policies Agenda Cover Sheet.docx
	Update 109.pdf

	TASB 2016-2018 Advocacy Agenda
	TASB 2016 2018 Advocacy Agenda.doc

	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Collections information item 12312017.doc
	TAX COLLECTIONS DECEMBER 2017.pdf

	Payments for Construction Projects
	Payments for Construction Projects.docx

	Bond Update
	Vanir LCISD Monthly Report.docx

	Projects funded by 2011 available bond funds
	Available Bond Funds.docx

	Transportation Update
	Transportation Update January.docx

	Proposed Budget Calendar
	Budget Calendar 2018-19 cover only.doc
	2018-19 Budget Calendar FINAL 2 01102018.doc

	Holdsworth Center Update
	Holdsworth Information Item.docx



	CLOSED SESSION
	Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the following purposes:  (Time___________________)
	Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.
	Personnel Employment.pdf
	Employment of professional personnel (Information)
	January 16 2018 Employed Info Only.docx

	Employee resignations and retirements (Information)
	January 16 2018 Resigned Info Only.docx






